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In the Matter of the Acquisition of Control of Network Health Plan and Network
Health Insurance Corporation by Froedtert Health,Inc.

Dear Ms. Forsberg:

This letter is in response to your September 17,2014, request addressed to Catherine Mode Eastham
for additional information regarding Froedtert Health, Inc.'s ("Froedtert", "FHI", or "Froedtert
Health, Inc.") Form A filing regarding the acquisition of control of Network Health Plan and
Network Health Insurance Corporation.

Regarding the hearing date, as you know, all parties have waived minimum notice of the hearing,
and we will accommodate the earliest possible date that you can schedule.

Your specific questions are listed below followed by the response. Similar to Froedtert's September
3,2014 letter enclosing its Form A filing, please note that responses to Questions 3(a), 3(b), 3(c), 4,
and 5(b) contain certain confidential information that could put Froedtert at a competitive
disadvantage if released to the public. Toward that end, Questions 3(a), 3(b), 3(c),4, and 5(b) have
been redacted from this letter and responses to these questions have been provided to the Office
under separate cover. Froedtert respectfully requests that the Offrce of the Commissioner of
Insurance ("Office") does not release the non-redacted version of the response letter (or any
corresponding attachments) to the public.

Question 1. Froedtert Health. Inc.: FHI is a non-stock Wisconsin corporation. Please identify

(a) The corporate members of Froedtert Health, Inc., and their respective representation on
FHI's Board,

(b) The ultimate controlling entity (if applicable), and
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(c) Any insurance company affiliates owned or controlled by the corporate members.

Response 1.

(a) Froedtert Health, Inc. has no corporate members.

(b) Not applicable - Froedtert Health, Inc. is the ultimate controlling entity.

(c) Froedtert Health, Inc. has no corporate members, and therefore there are no insurance
company affiliates owned or controlled by the corporate members.

Question 2. Purpose of the Proposed Transaction: please state;

(a) What are the objectives that FHI hopes to achieve if the proposed transaction is
consummated?

(b) How will the proposed transaction benefit FHI and Ministry Holdings, Inc. (and their
subsidiaries), respectively?

Resnonse 2.

(a) As health care continues to emphasize population health management, the skills and
resources of an entity that is involved in both health care deliver/and insurance become
increasingly,complementary. If the proposed transaction is consummated, Froedtert hopes to
develop and coordinate health care initiatives to improve the quality, delivery, and
efficiency of health care in V/isconsin.

(b) The proposed transaction will benefit Froedtert by diversifying and expanding Froedtert,s
(and its subsidiaries') business operations. The pioposed tiansaction *itt b"nãnt Ministry
Holdings, Inc' (and its subsidiaries) by providing another strong wi.co"si" ilih';;;.
organization to compliment Ministry Heaùh Care, Inc. as the ultiÃate controlling entity of
Network Health Plan and Network Health Insurance Corporation. The proposed transactionwill also better position Network Health to expand its service area in southeastern Wisconsin
and strengthen options for clinical integration.

Question 3. Member Admission Agreement: please provide or explain;

(a) Executed Copy: An executed copy of this agreement (when it becomes available).

(b) REDACTED

(c) Exhibits and Schedules: The following Exhibits and Schedules (referenced in the Member
Admission Agreement) were not attached to the Agreement, and were not otherwise
included with the Form A filing. Please provide a copy of the following Exhibits and
Schedules:
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Exhibits:
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D
Exhibit E
Exhibit F

REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED

Schedules:
2.2(b)
2.3(b)
2.6
2.7(a)
2.7(b)
2.7(c)
2.8
2.9
2.t0
2.tt
2.12(a)
2.12(d)
2.12(e)
2.14(a)
2.14(b)
2.t7(a)
2.18(b)
2.2r
2.22
s.18

REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED

Response 3.

(a) A redacted copy of the executed Member Admission Agreement is attached to this letter as
Attachment 3(al. A non-redacted copy of the executed Member Admission Agreement was
provided to the Office under separate cover.

(b) REDACTED

(c) A non-redacted copy of the requested Exhibits and Schedules was provided to the Offrce
under separate cover.

available).
4. Members' Aqreement: Please provide an executed copy of this agreement (when

Response 4. A redacted copy of the final Members Agreement is attached to this letter as
Attachment 4.
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Ouestion 5. Consolidated Audited Financial Statements - FHI and Affrliates: please provide or
explain:

(a) Consolidated Financial Statements: A copy of the audited consolidated financial statements
for FHI and Affiliates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 (when available).

(b) Debt Coverage Ratio: Please provide the Debt Coverage Ratio for the consolidated group for
the last 5 fiscal years. Does FHI try to maintain a minimum threshold for this ratio,ãndìf so
- what is the minimum threshold?

(c) Hart-Scott-Rodino Anti-Trust (HSR) Determination: Please provide a copy of the FTC's
determination as to whether the proposed transaction will/will not adveisely affect U.S.
commerce under the federal anti-trust laws (when available).

Res¡ronse 5.

(a) A copy of the audited consolidated financial statements for FHI and Affrliates for the fiscal
year ending June 30,2014 is attached as Attachment 5(a) to this letter.

(b) REDACTED

(c) A copy of the Federal Trade Commission's Hart-Scott-Rodino determination letter is
attached to this letter as Attachment 5(c).

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any further questions, please do
not hesitate to contact me. We look forward to continuing to workingïith you ánd OCI ihroughout
this process.

Very truly yours,

von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c.

Çlfeç
John E. Hintz

Enclosures

Catherine Mode Eastham, Esq., Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Froedtert
Health (via email w/ enclosures)

Sheila Jenkins, President, Network Health Plan and Network Health Insurance Corporation
(via email w/ enclosures)

Ronald Mohorek, Esq., Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Ministry Health Care
(via email w/ enclosures)
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ATTACHMENT 3(Ð

RESPONSE TO QUESTTON 3(Ð
MEMBER ADMISSION AGREEMENT

A non-redacted version of the executed Member Admission Agreement has been provided to the
Office under separate cover.
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by and between

MINISTRY IIO:LN,INGS; INC,

N{INISTRY IIEALTH CARE, II\C;

and'

FROEDTERT HEALTH, rNC.

Dated as of September 30, 2014
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MEMBER ADMISSION AGREEMENT

This MEMBER ADMISSION AGREEMENT (this "aglg@enl"), dated as of

September 30, 2014, is by and between Ministry Holdings, Inc., a Wisconsin non-stock

corporation (i¡t "ep¡qpg4y"), Ministry Health Care, Inc,, a Wisconsin non-stock corporation

fúgq') unà Fto"dt".t Health, Inc., a'Wisconsin non-stock corporation ("FHI"). The Company,

MHC and FHI are sometimes referred to herein individually as a "!3¡!y" and together as the
,,¡Jarties.,, Capitalized terms used in this Agreement that are not otherwise defined shall have the

-*"nl.rgr set fo¡th in Exhibit A attached to this Agreement, which is incorporated in this

Agreement as if fully set forth herein'

RECITALS:

IVHEREAS, the Company is a holding company that operates insurance companies

through its wholly controlled iubsidiaries, whioh are as follows: (a) Network He{th Plan, an

insurãnce.orporutiol organized under Chapter 6ll of the Wisconsin Statutes ('18P") that is

authorized to do busin.Jt in Wisconsin and, among other thing, owns and operates a health

maintenance organization, and (b) Network Health Insurance Corporation, a service insurance

corporation orgãnized rroá". Chapier 613 of the Wisconsin Statutes ("NHIÇ", and together with

NHþ, the "Sub-sidiaries" and eacfi a "subsidiary') that is authorized to do business in Wisconsin

und étrgug.r itt th. t,rsiness of health insurance (each of the businesses described above are

collectively referred to herein as the "Bugiqgsl");

MIEREAS, MHC is the sole member ofthc Company;

WHEREAS, MHC and the Conpany desire that FHI be admitted as a member of the

Company pursuant to the terms and condiìions hereof and having those membership rights in the

Compa"y ãs set forth in the amended and restated articles of incorporation of the Company and

the amended and restated bylaws of the Company (together with the amended and restated

afticles of incorporation of ÑHIC and NHP and the amended and restated bylaws of NHIC and

NHP, the "Restated Organizatioual Documents", the fonns of each being attached hereto as

Exhibit B);

1ilHEREAS, as set forth in the Restated Organizational Documents, the name of the

Company shall be changed to Network Health, Inc. in connection with the consummation of the

transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, FHI has filed a Form A (Statement Regarding the Acquisition of Control of
or Merger with a Domestic Insurer) with the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance for the

State of Wisconsin ("OCI') prior to the date hereof,

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and

agreements contained ín this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the

rJceipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be bound,

hereby agree as follows:



ARTICLE I.
MEMBERSHIPADMISSION

1.I Upon the temrs and subject to the

conditions set itted as a member of the Company

and shall have those membership rights set forth in the Restated Organizational Documents,

The Subscription price shall be pãia Uy FHI to MHC at Closing by wire transfer of

immediately available funds to ai account identified by MHC in consideration of its
admission as a member of the Company.

1.2 Clos.ing of Member Admission. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions

set forth in ¡rticte Vf, the consummation of FHI's admission as a member of the Company

and the oth", transu"tions oontemplated by this Agreement (the "Ç!øisg") shall take ¡þ-c9
within five (5) business days of the satisfáction of the conditions set forth in Section 6'l(þ)

ly agree in writing on a different date, the date

at 11925 West Lake Park Drive, Suite 100

e to which the Parties may agree in writing (the

applicable date being the "Çlog!nglD.ate")'
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COVENANTS

In addition to the other agreements and covenants inclucled in this Agreement, the Parlies

agree as follows:

2l



5.3 Access and Informatioq.

(Ð With respect to the period between the date hereof and the earlier to occur

of the Closing oi th" terminatiìn of this Agreement pursuant to Articlç VIII, the Company and

the Subsidiari-es shall afford, and MHC shall cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to afford,

to FHI and its accountants, counsel and other representatives reasonable access, upon reasonable

prior notice and during normal business hours, to all of the properties, books, accounts, tecords,

äontracts, and personnel of the Company and the Subsidiaries and, during such period, the

Company and the Subsidiaries shall, ãnd MH shall cause the Company and the Subsidiaries

an¿ i¡eii respective accountants, counsel and other representatives to, furnish promptly to FHI

and its representatives all information conceming the Business, and the properties and_personnel

of the Company, the Srfrsidiaries and MHC as FHI or its representatives may reasonably rçquest;

provided that su"h access shall be subject to the Company's, the Subsidiaries' and MHC's

I"uro*Ut. security rneasures and applicable Law and shall not urueasonably interfere with the

operations of the Company, the Subsidiaries or MHC.

(c) If MHC, the Company or the Subsidiaries bccome aware prior to Closing

of any event, fact or condition or nonoccuffence of any event, fact or condition that may

constitute a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant oÍ agreement of MHC, the

Company or the Subsidiarils, oì tttuy constitute a breach of any representation or warranty of

MHC, the Company or the Subsidiaries if such representation ot warranty were made on the date

of the occurrence or discovery of such event, fact or condition or on the Closing Date, then MHC

will promptly provide FHI with a written description of such fact or condition. The delivery of

any informaiioi pursuant to this Section will not cure any breach of a reprcsentation, warranty,

covenant or agreement nor will it limit any remedy that rnay be available to FHI under the terms

of this Agfeement.
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period between the date ho¡eof, and the
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5.10 AddjJional Agreements, Subject to the terms and conditions herein provided,

each of the Parties agfee to use commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be

taken, all action and io do, or cause to be done, all things necessary' proper or advisable

under applicable Laws to cônsummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by

this Agreement.

5.IZ Tax Retums: Transfer Taxes. Each of the Parties agrees to cooperate with

each other Parfy in the preparation of any Tax Retums.

5.13 With respect to the period between the date

hereof and the or the termination of this Agreement pursuant

to Article VIII, the Company shall, and MHC shall cause the Company to regularly and

"o.tin 
rotrly, provide F'HI wittr those interim, unaudited, financial statements of the

Company and the Subsidiaries prepared in

with past practices for each calendar month,
frnzrncial statements required to be filed w
within three (3) Business Days after being pr
The last set of interim Financial Statements delivered by the Company or MHC prior to the

Closing Date in accordance with this Section 5.13, shall be deemed included in the Financial

Statemãnts. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary the

iepresentations and warrantieJset fortñ in Section 2.7(a), above, with respect to any Interim

Financial Statements delivered to FHI under this Sectign 5.13 shall be deemed to lrave been

made by MHC as of the date of such delivery.
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ARTICLE VII.
DELIVERIES

7.1Ðq|iverieqbyFHl.subjecttowrittenwaiverbytheConrpany,FHlshal]
execute, u, upffiiot., ãiã-ããtiu* ui the Closing all of the following documents and

instruments:

(c) a certificate dated as of the Closing Date signed

executive offtcer of FHI certifying (i) FHI's certificate of incorporation and

resolutions of FHI's board of direitors approving FHI's execution, delivery

this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party;

(e) a certificate of status with respect to FHI issued by the Department of

Financial Institutions of the State of Wisconsin, issued not earlier than ten (10) Business Days

prior to the Closing Date; and

(f) all other documents and instruments reasonably required or requested by

MHC to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby'

Subject to written waiver by FHI, the

CompcausetheSubsidiariestoexecute,and
delive cuments and instruments:

(a) a certificate representing FHI',s membership in the corporation;

(b) a certificate dated as of the closing Date signed by an appropriate

executive officer of the company certifying that, as of the closing Date: (i) the company

Fundamental Representations i"-âm ûue and correct in all material respects in the manner set

forth in Section 6.1(a); with' in all

material respects, the c ement; and

(iii) to the inowledge have been

satisfied;

(c) a certificate dated as of the closing Date signed by al appropriate

executive offrcer of the Company and each subsidiary as applicable, certifying (i) the
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compan bylaws, and (ii) resolutions of the

Compan proving the Company's execution,

deliverygfeementstowhichitisaparty;
(d)acertificatedatedasoftheClosingDatesignedbyanappropriate

executive officer of vlHc certifying (i) MHC's articles of inðorporation and bylaws; and (ii) the

resolutions of MHC approving MHÓ'r'"*"".rtion, delivery and performance of this Agreement;

(e)acertificateofstatuswithrespecttotheCornpany,eachofthe
Subsidiaries and MHC, issued not earlier than ten (10) nìsiness Days prior to the Closing Date

;tih. Deparrment of Financial Institutions of the State of Wisconsin;

(g) a copy of the amended and restated articles of incorporation that are

contained in the n.stut"lõrganizational Documents that have been filcd with the Wisconsin

Department of Financial Institutions; and

(h) all other documents and instruments reasonably required or requested by

FHI to 
"orrr.r-*ât" 

the transactions contemplated hereby'
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ARTICLE X.
MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given

hereunder by a Pany shall be in writing ãnd shall be deemed to have been given' (a) when

received if liven in person or by courier or a courier service' or (b) on the immediately

following Business Dãy after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight carrier; in each

case if addressed or düected to à larty in accordance with the contact information included

on the signature pages to this Agreement, or to such other address as a Pafty may designate

for itselfby notice given as herein provided'

Agreementmaybeexecutedbyelectronictrans-mission
transmitted portable document format (PDF) and in

ed not contain the signatures of more than one Party, but

r shall constitute one and the same instrument'

10.3 Interpretation. The headings preceding the text of Articles and Sections

incl¡ded in this agreelnent and the headings to Exhibits and Schedules attached to this

and shall not
Agreement'
ny provision

"including" or'Tnclude" shall in all cases herein

"include,ïithout limitation," respectively. Underscored references to Articles, Sections'

Exhibits or Schedules shall refer to those portions of this Agreement-

lo,4 Governinq Law. This Agreement shall be govemed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the state of wisconsin, without regard to the princìples of

conflicts of laws.

10.5 Amendment and waivers. No amendment of any provision of this

Agreement shall be valid unless the

waiver by any PartY of anY default,

hereunder, whether intentional or no

default, misrepresentation, or breach of warr
rights arising by virtue of any prior or subsequent occurrence.

10.6 Assisnment. ThisAgreement shall be binding upon and inure^to the.benefit

of the parties and their respective Ñ"."ssorr and assigns. No assignment of any rights or

obligations shall be made by any Party without the written consent of each other Party.

10.7 ExDenses. All costs and expenses incurred in connection with this

Agreement un¿-ttãGlractions contemplated hereby (including those of brokers, lawyers,

accountants an¿ other u.luisors¡, shall be paid by the Party incurring such costs and

expenses.
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10.8 No Third Pany Beneficiaries. Thjs Agreement is solely for the benefit of the

Parties and no provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to confer upon any third party

any remedy, claim, Liability, ¡eimbursement, cause of action or other right.

10.9 Further Assurances. Upon the reasonable request of any Party, each other

Party will on and afler the Closing Date execute and deliver such other documents, releases,

assignments and other instruments as may be required to effectuate completely the

transactions contemplated hereby and to otherwise carry out the purposes of this Agreement;

provided, however, no such action shall require any other Party to incur any additional cost

òr Liability unless the requesting Parry shall agree to reimburse the reasonable costs and

expenses ofsuch other Party.

10.10 Severabilit]¡. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal
or unenforceable, the validity, legality or enforceability of the other provisions hereof shall

not be affected thereby, and there shall be decmed substituted for the provision at issue a

valid, legal and enforceable provision as similar as possible to the provision at issue'

10.11 Entire Understanding. This Agreement and the Confidentiality Agreement

sets forth the entire agreement and undcrstanding of the Parties with respect to the matters

set forth herein and supersedes any and all prior agreements, arrangements and

understandings among the Parties,

10.12 Specific Performance. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that, in the event

of any breach of this Agreement, each non-breaching Party would be ineparably and

immediately harmed and could not be made whole by monetary damages. It is accordingly

agreed that the Parties will (a) waive, in any action for specific performance, the defense of
ud.qnu"y of a remedy at law, and (b) be entitled, in the non-breaching Party's sole

discretion, in addition to any other ¡emedy to which they may be entitled at law or in equity,

to cornpel specific performance of this Agreement in any action instituted in accordance

with this Section 10,12,

10.13 Reproductions. This Agreement and all other documents, instruments and

agreements in the possession of any Party which relate hereto or thereto may be reproduced

by such Party, and any such reproduction shall be admissible in evidence, with the same

effect as the origirial itself, in any judicial or other administrative proceeding, whether the

original is in existence or not. No Party will object to the admission in evidence of any such

reproduction, unless the objecting Party reasonably believes that the reproduction does not

accurately reflect the contents ofthe original and objects on that basis.

10.14 No Presumption Against Drafter. Each of the Parties has jointly participated

in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the event of any ambiguity or if a

question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted

jãintly by each of the Parties and no presumptions or burdens of proof shall arise favoring

any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreemcnt.

10.15 Disputes. Al1 disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be

resolved in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 10.15. If a dispute arises

37



under this Agreement (including any alleged breach of this Agreement), a Party may submit

the dispute tõ alternative disputã resolution under this Section 10.15 by giving w¡itten notice

thereoi to the other Parties. The matter shall be submitted to the highest ranking executive

offrcer of each Party who shall meet to attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute, If after

thirty (30) days, thé mafter has not been resolved by the highest ranking executive offtcers

of túe'Parties, at the request of any Party, the matter will be submitted to mediation by a

mediator mutually acceptable to the Parties. Each Party will designate one or more

representatives to particþate in the mediation on behalf of such Party who will have the

authority to accepi a resólution of the dispute on behalf of such Party, If, and only it the

dispute ls not resolved by mediation, either Party may file suit in a court of competent

jurîsdiction to obtain a judicial determination or adjudication of the dispute, which may
-include 

specific performänce, declaratory rel ief, or any other remedies available under the

agreement, atlaw or in equitY.

ISignatures on Following Pages]
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IN WITNESS ìVHEREOF, eaóh of the Parties has oaused this Member Admission

Ageement to be execute;;lit Uénuf Uy its iepreso:rtatives duly aulhorized as of the day and

year first above writton,

The êoürhá:itl+:,æ
MI'NISTRY ITOLDINGS' INC;,
a Wsconsln non"stock corPoratìon

Presldent and CEO

Atldress for notice PurPoses,¡

Minfstry Health cate, rno.

11925 tñ¡est Lako Park Drive
Suite 100
Mil.waukeç, W'Í' 53224-301 4

Attn: Chtêf Exeoutive Ofücer

W,ilh a copyto (whieh will not oonstitute nolico)l

Ministry ÌIsalth Carc, lno.

1192i,5 Wcst LakePatk Dlive
Suite 100
Milwaukee, \l I 53224'301 4

Attru RonaldE. Mohorsk
Scnior VP and Gcnçral Cot¡nsel

md an additional copy to (which wlll not oonstitute notíce!'

Paul W. Seidenstricket' Esq.

Hall¡ Rende,t, Killian, Ileath & Lyman, P,C;

I I t East Kilbourn Avenue
Suito 1300
Milwaukee, WI53202

ffhe Company's Counterpatt Signature Pagel



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Member Admission

Agreement to be executed on its behalf by its representatives cluly authorized as of the day and

year first above written.

ME:
MINISTRY IIEALTH CARE, INC.,
a Wisconsin non-stock corporatlon

Mìlwaukee; wr 53224,3Q1 4

Attn: Chief Exeeutive Officer

Witt¡ a co,py to (which wíll not constitute notice):

:--- Ministry Health Care, Inc.
11925 -lüest Lnke Park Drive
Suite 100

Milwaukee, Wl 5322 4'3 0l 4
Attn: Ronald E. Mohorek
Senior VP and Genelal Counsel

and an additional copy to (which will not constitt¡te notice):

Paul rü/. Seidenstricker, Esq'
Hàll, Render, Killian Heath & Lyman, P.C'

I I I East Kilbourn Avcnue
Suite 1300
Milwaukee, W[53202

[MHC's Countetpart Signature Page]



lN V/I]'NESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Menrber Adrnission
Agreement to be executed on its behalf by its representatives duly authorized as of the day arrd
year first above written.

FHI:

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC.,
a ll/i scons i n n on-slo c k co rpor a I i on

Catherine
President and CEO

Address for notice purposes:

Froedtert Health, Inc,
9200 West rWisconsin Ave.
Milwaukee, Wl53226
Attn: General Counsel

rüith a copy to (which willnot constitute notice):

McDermott Will & Emery LLP
333 Avenue of the Americas, Suite 4500
Miami, Florida 33131
Attn: Gary Scott Davis, P.A.

and an additional copy to (which will not constitute notice)

Beck, Chaet, Bamberger & Polsky, S.C.
Two Plaza East
Suite 1085
330 E. Kilbourn Avenue
Milwaukee, Wl 53202
Attn: Michael Bamberger, Esq.

APPROVED AS TO FORM
Ofice of Genetal Coun¡el

Ò I

[FHI's Counterpart Signature Page]



CapÅtalized terrns used herein are defined in the provisions of the Agreement set forth

Interim ninan"iai S:tatements
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Restated Organizati onal Documents Recitals

Subsidiaries Recitals

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms and variations thereof have the

meanings specified below:

,'¡¡1¿" shall mean the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended.

..êflliêIgl' and similar terms have the meaning set ftjrth in Rule 12b-2 of the regulations

promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934' as amended'

"Business Day" means any day of the year not a Saturday or a Sunday on which national

banking -rtit"tir"r ir Milwaukee, Wisconsin are open to the public for conducting business and

are not required or authorized to close.

"eM-$." means the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid ServicesÂJ.S. Department of Health

and Human Services.

"Çgdg" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

"Company Financial Statements" means, collectively, (a) the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company and the Subsidiaries at December 37,2012, which fìnancial

statements consist of a consolidated balance sheet, the rclated consolidated statement of
operations, changes in member's equity and cash flows (and footnotes thereto) and the

cônsolidating schédule; (b) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the

Subsidiaries at December 3I,2013, which financial statements consist of a consolidated balance

sheet, the relate{ consolidated statement of operations, changes in member's equity and cash

flows (and footnotes thereto) and the consolidating schedule (the "2013 Audited Financial

Statemànts"); (c) the unaudited consolidated fìnancial statements of the Company and the

SoUri¿i*i.r, for the period ending on the last day of the calendar month prior to the execution of
this Agreement, whiõh financial statements consist of consolidated balance sheets and the related
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consolidated income statement; and (d) the frnal set of Interim Financial Statcments delivered

prior to the Closing Date pursuant to Section 5,13.

"Company Intellec 'means the Intellectual Property and Software used in

the conduct of the Business as it is currently conducted.

"Comoany Materi3l Coúd'means contracts to which the Company or a Subsidiary is

a party that: (i) have more than a one (l) year term, inclusive of renewal rights; or (ii) involve the

payment of more than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00).

"ERLSA." means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 7974, as amended,

and rules and regulations issued thereunder.

"EIRISA Affi.li¿lq" means any entity that is considered a single employer with the

Company or any Subsidiary under Section 414 of the Code.

..@'meanstheCompanyFinancialStatementsandtheSubsidiary
Financial Statements.

"Gl\l\!" means United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently

applied.

"Governmental Authoritv" means any court, arbitrator, administrative agency or

commission, or governlnental or quasi-govemmental or regulatory official, department, agency,

body, authority or instrumentality, including the Wisconsin Health lnsurance Exchange, whether

foreign or U.S. federal, state or local.

"Ç.g.v.gru¡q_gnlal_Q4lg¡" means any order, writ, judgrnent, injunction, decree, stipulation,
deterrnination or award entered by or with any Govemmental Authority'

':ER__,{q" means the Hart-Scolt-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as

amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

"lnconlç_TAð_B.QIUIq" means any Tax Return that is required to be filed with respect to a

tax that is based on, or calculated by reference to, net income.

"In1glþctual-Propçr1y" nleans, collectively, all U.S., state and foreign (a) inventions
(whether patentable or unpatentable and whether or not reduced to practice), all irnprovements

thereto, and all patents ("EA!eqlS,"); (b) trademarks, service marks, trade names, Internet domain

llames, designs, logos and slogans, all goodwill associated therewith, and all applications,

registrations, and renewals in connection therewith ("Trademarks"); (c) moral rights and

copyrigbts in any work of authorship (including but not limited to databases and software)

("Cop:¡rights"); (d) all trade secrets and confidential or proprietary business information
(including, without limitation, confidential ideas, research and development, know-how,
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methods, formulas, compositions, manufacturing and production processes and techniques,

technicai data, designs, dìawings, specifications, custotner and supplier 1ists, pricing and cost

information, and bùsiness and marketing plans and proposals) ("Trade Secrets"); and (e) all

copies and tangible embodiments thereof (iD whatever form or nredium).

,,IP Licenses" means all contracts (excluding ofÊthe-shelf computer programs and the

terms of use or service for any web site) pursuant to which the Company or any of the

Subsidiaries have acquired rights in (including usage rights) or to any Intellectual Property or

Software, or licenses or agreements pursuant to which the Company or any of the Subsidiaries

have licensed or transferred the right to use any Intellectual Property or Software'

..Larils'r means any federal, state, local or municipal stafute, law, ordinance, regulation,

rule, code, order, other requirement or rule of law.

'.Liability" means any known liability or obligation, whether asserted or unasserted,

absolute or coniingent, accrued or unaccrued, liquidated or unliquidated and whether due or to

become due, regardless of when asserted.

.!Lien" means any mortgage or deed of trust, pledge, hypothecation, assignment, deposit

uru¡g".*nq security inierest, úen, charge, encumbrance, lease, covenant' condition, restriction,

incluãing a restrictiôn on transfer or assignment, option, right of first refusal or any other

preferenãe or priority or other security agreement or preferential anangement of any kind or

nature whatsoèver (including any conditional sale or other title retention agreement having

substantially the same effect as any of the foregoing).
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"Mgm!_glq_A.gg.g!q_gn!" means that certain Members Agreement between the Company,

MHC and FHI in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.

l:Ovrne4*neal.... ' means all land, together with all buildings, structures,

improvements ánd fixtures located thereou, including all electrical, mechanical, plumbing and

otlier building systems, fire protection, security and surveillance systems, telecommunications,

computer, wiring, and cable installations, utility installations, rvater distribution systems, and

landscaping, together with all easements and other rights and interests appurtenant thereto

(including air, oil, gas, mineral, and water rights), owned by the Company or the Subsidiaries'

"Permitted Liens" means (a) statutory liens for current Taxes or other govemmental

charges not yet due and payable or the amount or validity of which is being contested in good

faith by appropriate proceedings by the Company or any of the Subsidiaries and for which
appropriate reserves have been established in accordance with SAP (with respect to the

Subsidiaries) or GAAP (with respect to the Company); (b) mechanics', cariers', wolkers',
repairers' and similar statutory liens arising or incurred in the ordinary couÌse of business;

(c) liens arising under worker's compensation, unemployment insurance, social security,

retirement and similar legislation; (d) purchase money liens and liens securing rental payments
gnder capital or operating lease arrangements; and (e) informational statements filed under the

Uniform Commercial Code with respect to operational leases.

A-5



"ps1'son" means any human being, sole proprietorship, general partnership, limited

partner-shþjoint venture, irust, unincorpoìated organization, associatiotl, corporation, limited

iiuUitlty company, Governmental Authority or other entity.

"Real Property" means the property leased by the Company or the Subsidiaries under the

Real Property Leases and the Owned Real Property.

..SAp,' means the statutory accounting practices prescribed by Wis. Admin. Code $ Ins.

50.20(lxb) and OCI's prescribeã practices wiìh respect to statutory financial statements filed

with OCL

,,ssÊw4ls" means all computer programs, including any and all software

i-pl"*rntuti*, of algorithms, models and *"ihodologies whether in soulce code or object code

foim, databases and cõmpilations, including any and all electronic data and electronic collections

of data, all documentatión, including user manuals and training materials; related to any of the

foregoing and the content and information contained on any web site.

,,State Regulatory Filings" means all annual statutory-basis financial statements of the

subsidiaries filed with ocl for the year ended December 31,2013.

,,subsidiary Financial Statements" means, collectively, (a) the audited financial

statements of each SuUsiaiary at December 31,2072, which financial statements consist of a

balance sheet and the related statement of operations, changes in member's equity and cash

flows (and footnotes thereto); (b) the audited fînancial statements of each Subsidiary at

December 31,2013, which financial statements consist of a balance sheet and the related

statement of operations, changes in member's equity and cash flows (and footnotes thereto);

(c) the financial statements of ãach Subsidiary required to be filed with the OCI during 2012 and

àólg; (¿) the unaudited financial statements of each Subsidiary, for the period ending on the last

day of'túe calendar month prior to the exectrtion of this Agreement, which ftnancial statements
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consist of a balance sheet and the related incorne statement; and (e) the final set of lnterim

Financial Statements delivered prior to the Closing Date pursuant to Section 5.14.

"Taxes2' means all federal, provincial, tenitorial, state, municipal, local, domestic, foreign

or other taxes, imposts, rates, levies, assessments and other charges including, without limitation,
ad valorem, capiÍal, capital stock, customs and import duties, disability, documentary stamp,

escheat and unclaimed property, employment, estimated, excise, fees, franchise, gains, goods and

services, gross income, gross receipts, income, intangible, inventory, license, mortgage

recording, ìet income, occupation, payroll, personal properly, premiums, production, profits,

property, real property, recording, rent, sales, severance, sewer, social security, stamp, transfer,

iransfer gains, unemployment, use, value added, water, windfall profits, and withholding,

together with any interest, additions, fines or penalties with respect thereto or in respect of any

failure to comply with any requirement regarding Tax Returns and any interest in respect of such

additions, fines or penalties and shall include any transferee Liability in respect of any and all of
the above.

"IAx__M¡n" means any declaration, estimate, retutn, report, information statement,

schedule or other document (including any related or supporting information) with respect to

Taxes that is required to be fìled with any Governmental Authority, including any schedule or

attachment thereto, and any amendment thereof.
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ATTACHMENT 4

RESPONSE TO QUESTTON 4
MEMBERS AGREEMENT

A non-redacted version of the final Members Agreement has been provided to the Offrce under
separate cover.
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MEMBERS AGREEMENT

by and among

NETWORK HEALTH, INC. (flkla Ministry Holdings, Inc.)

and its members

MTNISTRY HEALTH CARE, INC.

FROEDTERT HEALTH, fNC.

Dated as of ,2014

and
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MEMBERS AGREEMENT

This MEMBERS AGREEMENT ("Asreement") is entered into as of
2014 ("Effective Date"), by and among Network Health, lnc. (flWa Ministry Holdings, Inc.), a
Wisconsin non-stock corporation (the "Ç_gmp_A4y"), Ministry Health Care, Inc., a'Wisconsin non-
stock corporation ("MHC") and Froedtert Health, Inc., a Wisconsin non-stock corporation
("FHI", and together with MHC, the "Mç!qþqq" and each individually a "Member"). The
Company, MHC and FHI are sometimes referred to herein individually as a "þ¡!y" and together
as the "Palties."

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a Member Admission Agreement dated
June 30, 2014 (the "Member Admission Agreement"), pursuant to which FHI has been admitted
as a member of the Company as of the date hereof;

WHEREAS, MHC and FHI are the only members of the Company;

\ilHEREAS, the Company is a holding company that operates insurance companies
through its wholly controlled subsidiaries, which are as follows: (a) Network Health Plan, an

insurance corporation organized under Chapter 6l l of Wisconsin Statutes ("NHP") that is
authorized to do business in Wisconsin and owns and operates a health maintenance
organization, and (b) Network Health Insurance Corporation, a selice insurance corporation
organized under Chapter 613 of Wisconsin Statutes ("NHIC", and together with NHP, the
"Subsidiaries" and each a "Subsidiary") that is authorized to do business in Wisconsin and

engages in the business of health insurance (each of the businesses described above are

collectively referred to herein as the "Bu_sin_ess"); and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into this Members Agreement to govem certain
affairs of the Company and to set forth certain rights and obligations of the Members.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements and obligations set forth
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are

hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms not otherwise defined herein
shall have the following meanings:

"Applicable Rate" means an annual rate of interest equal to the three (3) month London
Interbank Offered Rate plus 2%.

An "Affiliate" of a specified Person shall mean a Person which, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, Controls, or is Controlled by, or is under common Control



with, the Person specified and, when used with respect to the Company or the Subsidiaries, shall

include any holder of membership rights or capital stock, such Person's parent entity and any

offìcer or director of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

"Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

"Business Da)¿" means any day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, on which
banks in Milwaukee, Wisconsin are permitted to be open for business.

"CMS" means the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services.

"Control" shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause

the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through ownership of
membership rights or other securities, by contract or otherwise.

"Director" means any member of the Board of Directors of the Company.

"Membership Rights" means the membership rights of a Member in the Company
pursuant to applicable law and the Organizational Documents, each as may be amended from
time to time.

"OCI" means the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance for the State of Wisconsin
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izational " means the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the

Company, as each may be amended from time to time.

'Éps¡5¡n" means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust,

unincorporated association, govemment or any agency or political subdivision thereof or any

other entity.

..@''meanSthesale(inasingletransactionoraseriesofrelated
transactions) of the Company (or the Subsidiaries) to any independent third party.

"Tratìsfer'r means to transfer, sell, assign, pledge, hypothecate, give, grant or create a

security interest in or lien on, place in trust (voting or otherwise), assign an interest in or in any

other way encumber or dispose of directly or indirectly and whether or not by operation of law
or for value, any Membership Rights.

ARTICLE II

ARTICLE III
RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER

Except as set forth in this Article III, no Member shall Transfer its Membership Rights.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, no Transfer of or attempt to Transfer any Membership

Rights in violation of the preceding sentence shall be effective or valid for any purpose. No
Member shall grant any proxy or enter into or agree to be bound by any voting trust with respect

to its Membership Rights nor shall any Member enter into any agreements or affangements of
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any kind with any Person with respect to its Membership Rights on terms that conflict'ù/ith the

provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
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ARTICLE V
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ARTICLE VI
DEADLOCK RESOLUTION

Section 6.1 Dispute Resolution. Anlhing to the contrary contained herein
notwithstanding, all disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved in
accordance with the procedures set fofth in this Section. To the extent a dispute arises under
this Agreement, the matter shall be submitted to the highest ranking executive officer of each
Party who shall meet to attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute. If after thirty (30) days, the
matter has not been resolved by the highest ranking executive offìcers of the Parties, at the
request of any Party, the matter will be submitted to mediation by a mediator mutually
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acceptable to the Parties. Each Party will designate one or more representatives to participate in
the mediation on behalf of such Party who will have the authority to accept a resolution of the
dispute on behalf of such Party. If, and only if, the dispute is not resolved by mediation, either
Party may file suit in a court of competent jurisdiction to obtain a judicial determination or
adjudication of the dispute, which may include specific performance, declaratory relief, or any
other remedies available under the agreement, at law or in equity.

Section 6.2 Operations durins a Deadlock. With respect to any Deadlock, the Chief
Executive Offìcer of the Company shall continue to direct, and make decisions with respect to,
the strategic direction and operations of the Company and the Subsidiaries, as applicable,
consistent with his or her authority, past practice and the annual budget, and any action taken by
or at the direction of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be
binding on the Company and the Subsidiaries, as applicable; provided, however, that the Chief
Executive Officer shall not take any action reserved for the Members pursuant to the
Organizational Documents without the joint consent of the Members or requiring approval of
the Board pursuant to the Organizational Documents or applicable law without the consent of
the Board.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 7.2 Entire Aqreement; Amendment.

(a) This Agreement sets forlh the entire agreement and understanding of the
Parties with respect to the matters set fofth herein and supersedes any and all prior agreements,
arrangements and understandings among the Pafties with respect hereto.

(b) No amendment of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless the
same shall be in writing and signed by the Company, FHI and MHC.
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SectionT.3 Severability.

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the
validity, legality or enforceability of the other provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby,
and there shall be deemed substituted for the provision at issue a valid, legal and enforceable
provision as similar as possible to the provision at issue.

Section 7.4 Notices.

Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder by a Party shall
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given, (a) when received if given in person or by
courier or a courier service, (b) when sent by facsimile, on the date of transmission, or (c) on the
immediately following Business Day after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight carier;
in each case if addressed or directed to a Party in accordance with the contact information
included on the signature pages to this Agreement, or to such other address as a Party may
designate for itself by notice given to the other Palties as herein provided.

Section 7.5 Bindins Effect; Assisnment.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and to
their respective transferees, successors, assigns, heirs and administrators; provided that the rights
under this Agreement may not be assigned except as expressly provided herein. No such
assignment shall relieve an assignor of its obligations hereunder.

Section T.6 Action Necessa .

The Parties agree to take or cause to be taken all such corporate and other action as may
be necessary to effect the intent and purposes of this Agreement.

Section 7.7 No Waiver.

No course of dealing and no delay on the part of any Party hereto in exercisin g any right,
power or remedy conferred by this Agreement shall operate as waiver thereof or otherwise
prejudice such Party's rights, powers and remedies. No single or partial exercise of any rights,
powers or remedies conferred by this Agreement shall preclude any other or further exercise
thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy.
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SectionT.S Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed by electronic transmission (i.e., facsimile or
electronically transmitted portable document format (PDF) and in counterparts, any one of
which need not contain the signatures of more than one Party, but all such counterparts taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SectionT.9 Interpretation

All headings and captions in this Agreement are for purposes of references only and shall
not be construed to limit or affect the substance of this Agreement. Words used in this
Agreement, regardless of the gender and numberused, will be deemed and construed to include
any other gender, masculine, feminine, or neuter, and any other number, singular or plural, as the
context requires. As used in this Agreement, the word "including" is not limiting, and the word
"or" is not exclusive. The words "this Agreement," "hereto," "herein," "hereunder," "hereof,"
and words or phrases of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any
particular article, section, subsection, paragraph, clause or other portion of this Agreement. Any
reference to an agreement herein shall mean such agreement as amended from to time to time in
accordance with its terms.

Section 7.10 Governins Law; No Jury Trial; Jurisdiction

(a) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of 

.Wisconsin, 
without regard to the principles of conflicts of laws.

(b) TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAV/, THE PARTIES
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR
THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

(c) EACH OF THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ANY LITIGATION BASED
HEREON, OR ARISING OUT OF, UNDER, OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT BETV/EEN OR AMONG SUCH PARTIES, SHALL BE BROUGHT AND
MAINTAINED EXCLUSIVELY IN THE COURTS OF THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, OR IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN. EACH OF THE PARTIES
HEREBY EXPRESSLY AND IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE
COURTS OF THE STATE OF WISCONSIN LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE,
AND OF THE I.INITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF
V/ISCONSIN. EACH OF THE PARTIES HEREBY EXPRESSLY AND IRREVOCABLY
WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY OBJECTION WHICH
IT MAY NOV/ OR HEREAFTER HAVE TO THE LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY SUCH
LITIGATION BROUGHT IN ANY SUCH COURT REFERRED TO ABOVE AND ANY
CLAIM THAT ANY SUCH LITIGATION HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT
FORUM.
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Section 7.11 Joint Draftins.

Each of the Parties has jointly participated in the negotiation and drafting of this
Agreement. In the event of any ambiguity or if a question of intent or interpretation arises, this
Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by each of the Parties and no presumptions or
burdens of proof shall arise favoring any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the
provisions of this Agreement.
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Date.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective

The Company:

NETWORK HEALTH, INC. (flkla Ministry
Holdings, Inc.),
a lTis c ons in non-s to c k c orpor at íon

By:
Sheila Jenkins
President and CEO

Address for notice purposes:

Network Health,Inc.
1570 Midway Place
Menasha, Wl54952
Attn: President & CDO

With a copy to each of MHC and FHI (which will
not constitute notice).



MHC:

MINISTRY HEALTH CARE, INC.,
a Wisconsin non-stock corporation

By:
Nicholas F. Desien
President and CEO

Address for notice purposes

Ministry Health Care, Inc.
11925 West Lake Park Drive
Suite 100

Milwaukee, WI 53224-3 0 I 4
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

With a copy to (which will not constitute notice):

Ministry Health Care, Inc.
11925 West Lake Park Drive
Suite 100
Milwaukee, Wl 53224-3 0 I 4
Attn: Ronald E. Mohorek
Senior VP and General Counsel

and an additional copy to (which will not constitute
notice):

Paul W. Seidenstricker, Esq.
Hall, Render, Killian, Heath & Lyman, P.C.
l l l East Kilbourn Avenue
Suite 1300
Milwaukee,Wl 53202



F'HI:

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC.,
a Vli s c onsin non-st o c k c orpor ation

By:
Catherine Jacobson
President and CEO

Address for notice purposes:

Froedtert Health, Inc.
9200 West Wisconsin Ave.
Milwaukee,Wl53226
Attn: General Counsel

With a copy to (which will not constitute notice):

McDermott Will & Emery LLP
333 Avenue of the Americas, Suite 4500
Miami, Florida 3313I
Attn: Gary Scott Davis, P.A.

and an additional copy to (which will not constitute
notice):

Beck, Chaet, Bamberger & Polsþ, S.C.
Two Plaza East
suite 1085

330 E. Kilbourn Avenue
Milwaukee,Wl 53202
Attn: Michael Bamberger, Esq.



ATTACHMENT 5(a)

RESPONSE To QUESTION s(a)

F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS F'OR F'HI AND AFFILIATES FOR THE F'ISCAL YEAR
ENDTNG JUNE 30,2014

See Attached.
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules

June 30, 2014 and2073

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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IM KPMG LLP
Aon Center
Suite 5500
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, lL 60601-6436

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors
Froedtert Health, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements
'We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Froedtert Health, Inc. and

Affiliates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,2014 and2013, and the related

consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and

the related notes to the consolidated fìnancial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Fínancial Stslements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or effor.

Auditors' Responsìbility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the

entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in orderto design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consol idated fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects, the financial position of Froedtert Health, Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30,2014 and 2013, and

the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP ¡s a DelaMre limiled l¡abilily pãrtnership,
the U S rember f¡rm of KPMG lntemation¿l Cooperative
('KP¡¡G lnlemational'), a Swiss ent¡ty



MMd

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements

taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in schedules I through 3 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such

information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated fìnancial
statements themselves or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated fìnancial
statements as a whole.

t&,"tc- LtF

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
September 17,2014
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2014 and2013

(ln thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets whose use is limited
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles

of approximately $44,100 in2014 and $45,500 in2013
Other receivables
Inventories
Collateral held for securities loaned
Prepaids and other

Total current assets

Investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted
Investments in unconsolidated affi liates
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Deferred financing costs and other assets, net

Total assets

current riabilities: 
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current installments of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable under securities lending agreement
Estimated settlements to third-pafiy payors

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current installments
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated joint ventures

Total unrestricted

Temporari ly restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

s 2,756,801 2,476,738

2014 2013

s 111,301
694

105,744
1,3 83

177,474
1 1,189
22,457

335,433
9,574

183,605
10,710
21,587

266,846
8.748

668,122

l,148,1 98
134,551

45,275
733,598

27,057

598,623

7,004,6',70
158,498

41,488
641,104
32,355

s 9,533
34,2'74

t70,423
335,433

12,123

9,655
26,578

170,455
266,846

6,202

561,786

570,460
73,878

479,736

580,500
7 5,7 51

1,206,124 7,735,987

1,535,923
2,243

7,328,209
2.26'7

1,538,166

12,143
368

1,330,476

9,907
368

1,550,677 1,340,'7 5l

J

$ 2,756,801 2,476,738



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended June 30, 2014 and2013

(In thousands)

2014 2013

Net patient service revenue:
Net patient service revenue before provision for bad debts
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Other operating revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Supplies
Contract services
Affiliate support
Depreciati on and amortizati on
Interest
Other

Total expenses

Operating revenue in excess ofexpenses

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income
Change in net unrealized gains on trading securities
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment

Total nonoperating gains (losses), net

Revenue and gains in excess ofexpenses and losses

Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on other-than-trading

securities
Contributions and net assets released from restrictions for

properry, plant, and equipment
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net

periodic benefit costs
Other

Increase in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Unrestricted net assets at end ofyear

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 1,661,856
73,390

1,501,898
76.156

1,588,466

66,681

1,425,742

73,464

1,655,147 1,499,206

588,077
145,833
316,443
135,323
84,769
72,894
23,171

204,896

1,577,406

512,648
t2g,g7l
276,288
129,412
70,451
59,962
22,176

215,006

1,414,814

83,741 84,392

59,469
67,989

(s13)

(370)

39,81',7

42,081
17,025
(3,640)

(4r2)

126,515

210,316

(20s)

2,152

(5,253)
680

94,871

179,263

(1,218)

3,457

26,372
308

207,690

1,330,476

208,182

7,122,294

4

$ 1,538,166 7,330,416



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years ended June 30, 2014 and2013

(In thousands)

U n restricted
net assets

Temporarily
restricted
net assets

Permanently
restricted
net assets Total

Balance, June 30, 2012

Revenue and gains in excess ofexpenses and
losses

Change in net unrealized gains (losses)
on investments

Change in net unrealized gains (losses)
on other-than-trading securities

Restricted contributions
Restricted investment retum
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations
Contributions and net assets released from

restrictions for property, plant, and
equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other than
net periodic benefit costs

Other

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Balance, June 30, 2013

Revenue and gains in excess ofexpenses and
losses

Change in net unrealized gains (losses)
on investments

Change in net unrealized gains (losses)
on other-than-trading securities

Restricted contributions
Restricted investment return
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations
Contributions and net assets released from

restrictions for property, plant, and
equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other than
net periodic benefit costs

Other

Increase in net assets

Balance, June 30, 2014

s 1,122,294

179,263

(1,218)

3,457

26,372
308

10,948

(s44)

(3,457)

368 I,133,ó10

179,263

307307

2,294
323

36

(1,218)
2,294

323

(544)

26,372
344

208,182 (1,041) 207 141

1,3 30,476 9,907 368 t,340,751

210,316

(20s)

2,152

(5,253)
680

422

210,316

422

4,128
412

(581)

(2,152)

(205)
4,128

412

(581)

(s,2s3)
6877

207,690 2,236 209.926

$ r,538,166 12.143 368 1,550,677

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2014 and2013

(ln thousands)

2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debts
Loss on disposal ofproperty, plant, and equipment
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Income from equity interest in unconsolidated affiliates, net
Restricted contributions and investment retum
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on unrestricted investments, net
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements
Change in accrued pension benefìts other than net periodic benefit costs

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable
Estimated settlements to third-party payors
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other receivables
Inventories
Other assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net additions to property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sales ofproperty, plant, and equipment
Purchases of investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted
Proceeds from sales or maturities of investments and assets whose use is

limited or restricted
Additional capital contributions in unconsolidated affiliates

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt
Payments for deferred fìnancing costs
Proceeds from issuance oflong-term debt, net ofbond premium
Restri cted contributions and investment return
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year

End ofyear

s 209,926

72,894
73,390

370

59,962
76,156

412
3,640

(2,116)
(2,924)

544
(55,965)
(17,025)
(26,372)

(82,774)
291

32,070
I 0,1 83
(1,837)
7.003

207,747

(3,787)
(4,962)

581
(102,53 l)

513
5,253

(67,259)
5,921
7,664
(47e)
(870)

(3,473)

193 151 208.389

(16s,875)
51

(892,232)

875,877

(126,678)
221

(440,751)

286,2s1
(e,619)

( 1 82,1 85)

( l 89,590)
(2es)

I 80,095
4,962
(58 l)

(67,198)
(r,6e0)

167,195
2,924
(s44)

(5,409) 100,687

5,5s7

105.744

18,500

87,244

$ I 11,301

6

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

105,744



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenrents

June 30,2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Froedtert Health, Inc. (FH) is a nonstock, not-for-profìt corporation organized to support and carry out the

missions of Froedtert Memorial Lutheran Hospital, Inc. (FMLH); Community Memorial Hospital of
Menomonee Falls,Inc. (CMH); St. Joseph's Community Hospital of West Bend,Inc. (SJCH); Froedtert &
The Medical College of Wisconsin Community Physicians (CP); and Progressive Physician Network, Inc.
(PPN). FH is the sole corporate member of FMLH, CMH, SJCH, and PPN.

FMLH owns and operates an acute care hospital with 655 approved beds (of which 576 arc currently
staffed), clinics, and related operations in Wauwatosa, Wisconsin. FMLH is the sole corporate member of
Froedtert Hospital Foundation, Inc. (Froedtert Foundation), which is a supportingorganization of FMLH.
The purpose of Froedtert Foundation is to raise money and to accept contributions for the purpose of
developing philanthropic support for FMLH. Froedtert Foundation solicits, allocates, and dispenses funds

exclusively for the maintenance, benefit, and support of FMLH programs, services, education, and capital

improvements in accordance with priorities set by the Froedteft Foundation's board of directors and donor

restrictions. Froedtert Surgery Center, LLC (FSC) is a Wisconsin limited liability company created as a
joint venture among FMLH, The Medical College of Wisconsin (MCW), and Advanced Healthcare S.C.

(Advanced) to provide ambulatory surgery services. FMLH has a 50% ownership in FSC.

CMH owns and operates an acute care hospital with 235 approved beds (of which 202 are currently
staffed) in Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin. Community Memorial Foundation of Menomonee Falls, Inc.

(Community Memorial Foundation) is a separate Wisconsin not-for-profit corporation whose primary
purpose is to raise money and to accept contributions for the purpose ofdeveloping philanthropic support

for CMH. Community Memorial Foundation solicits, allocates, and dispenses funds for the maintenance,

benefit, and support of CMH programs, services, education, and capital improvements in accordance with
priorities set by the Community Memorial Foundation's board of directors and donor restrictions. CMH is
also the sole corporate member of Community Outpatient Health Services of Menomonee Falls, Inc.

(COHS). COHS is a primary care clinic for the indigent.

SJCH owns and operates an acute care hospital with 70 approved and staffed beds in Vy'est Bend,

Wisconsin. SJCH is the sole corporate member of St. Joseph's Community Foundation, Inc.

(St. Joseph's Foundation), which is a supporting organizalion of SJCH. The purpose of St. Joseph's

Foundation is to raise money and to accept contributions for the purpose of developing philanthropic
support for SJCH and CP. St. Joseph's Foundation solicits, allocates, and dispenses funds for the

maintenance, benefit and support of SJCH and CP programs, services, education and capital improvements
in accordance with priorities set by the St. Joseph's Foundation's board of directors and donor restrictions.
SJCH is also the sole corporate member of West Bend Surgery Center, LLC (WBSC), an ambulatory
surgery center in West Bend, Wisconsin.

West Bend Clinic (WBC) operated multispecialty clinics and an ambulatory surgery center in West Bend,

Vy'isconsin, and other satellite clinics in surrounding communities. Effective July 7, 2073, V/BC was

dissolved, merged its assets and liabilities into CP and was removed as amember of the Obligated Group.

CP, formerly known as Froedteft Physician Partners, Inc. (FPP), is ajoint clinical practice group between

FH and MCW designed to provide clinical integration and coordinated patient care at community clinics.
FH and MCV/ are the corporate members of CP.

7 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

PPN is an independent practice association, which contracts with health plans and other third-party payors

to arrange for the provision of healthcare services by its physician members. PPN serves to support a

network of healthcare professionals engaged in developing reproducible clinical and administrative

processes that clinically integrate such professionals in a manner which improves patient health, enhances

þatient experiences, and reduces or controls the cost of healthcare in such professionals' shared

communities.

FH has a 600/o ownership interest in Froedtert Health Hometown Pharmacy, LLP (FHHP), which owns and

operates a retail pharmácy selling prescriptions and over-the-counter medications and related products in

úest Bend, Wisconsin. ln2013,FH became 50olo owner in both FHHP-Sussex (Sussex), LLC and FFIHP -
Kewaskum (Kewaskum), LLC which own and operate retail pharmacies in Sussex and Kewaskum,

Wisconsin, respectively.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FH, FMLH, Froedtert

Foundationj fSC,-CVg, Community Memorial Foundation, COHS, SJCH, St. Joseph's Foundation'

WBSC, CP, PPN, FHHP, Sussex, and Kewaskum'

At June 30,2014,FH, FMLH, Froedtert Foundation, CMH, Community Memorial Foundation, SJCH' and

St. Joseph;s Foundation are members of the obligated group (Obligated Group) for the purposes of the

issuancó of bonds through the Wisconsin Health and Educational Facilities Authority (ViHEFA) (note 6)'

The Obligated Group consisted only of the members mentioned above and excludes FSC, COHS, WBSC,
ppN, Cp;FHHP, Sussex, and Kewaskum. Total combined assets of FSC, COHS, V/BSC, PPN, CP, FHHP,

Sussex, and Kewaskum, which are not members of the Obligated Group, were $86,526 at June 30,2014.

Total combined net assets of the same entities were $53,377 at June 30,2014 and total combined revenue

and gains in excess ofexpenses and losses were $1,150 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

The significant accounting policies of FH are as follows:

(a) Principles of Consolidution

The consolidated financial statements ofFH have been prepared on the accrual basis ofaccounting in

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Net Assets

Net assets are classified as either permanently or temporarily restricted when the use of the assets is

limited by outside parties or as unrestricted net assets when outside parties place no restrictions on

the use of the assets or when the assets arise as a result of the operations of FH.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to FH are reported at fair value at the date the

promise is recelved. Pledgei receivable to be collected after one year are discounted using a risk-free

interest rate atthe time thã pledge is made. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions

to give are reported aI fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either

teniporarily oi p"r.un"ntly restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit

the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time

S (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are

reclassifìed as unrestricted net assets and reported as operating revenue in the consolidated

statements of operations if restricted for operating purposes and as an increase to unrestricted net

assets if restricted to purchase property, plant, and equipment. Gifts for which donors have not
stipulated restrictions, as well as contributions for which donors have stipulated restrictions that are

met within the same reporting period, are repofted as other operating revenue. FH's temporarily
restricted net assets are restricted for future construction or specifrc operations of FMLH, CMH, and

SJCH. The permanently restricted net assets are endowment funds held by Froedtert Foundation and

St. Joseph's Foundation, the principal of which may not be expended.

Interpretation of Relevant Law Governing Endowments

FH applies the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) No. 958-205, Not-for-ProJit
Entities Presentation of Financial Statements. ASC 958-205 provides guidance on the net asset

classification of donor restricted endowment funds for not-for-profit organizations and requires

additional disclosure about endowment funds.

The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) legislation eliminates the

historic-a] dollar value threshold, an amount below which an organization could not spend from the

endowment, and replaces it with guidelines that constitute prudent spending with preservation of the

endowment. UPMIFA requires the establishment of a spending policy, which may result in the value

of the endowment dropping below the historical dollar value threshold.

Froedtert Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets the original value of gifts donated

to the permanent endowment, the original value of subsequent gifts to the pemanent endowment,

and accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the

applicable donor gift instrument. Investment returns in excess of spending are classified as increases

in temporarily restricted net assets until appropriated for expenditure by Froedtert Foundation.

Endowment Spending Policy

Froedtert Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year, a percentage as

determined periodically by the Froedtert Foundation board of the average fair market value of the

assets of the endowment as of June 30 of the preceding 12 quarters. Over the duration of the

investments, the Froedteft Foundation anticipates that when offset against inflationary factors, this
policy will maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets that are required to be held in
perpetuity, as well as to provide additional purchasing power through new contributions and

investment returns.

9 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Endowment Investment Policy

Froedtert Foundation attempts to provide a predictable stream of funding to support its endowments

while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. The endowment's assets

are commingled with the investment assets of the Froedterl Foundation and for investment purposes

are invested in a manner determined by the FH Investment Committee and in accordance with the

FH investment policy. In order to satisf, the long-term rate of return of the investment policy and

objectives, FH relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both

realized and unrealized gains and losses and interest and dividend income.

(c) Assets llhose Use Is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets set aside by management for executive

compensation agreements and for affiliate support, assets held by trustees under debt agreements,

assets held under swap collateral posting requirements, and assets whose use is restricted by donors.

Assets whose use is limited are reported as unrestricted net assets. Assets whose use is restricted by

donors are reported as temporarily restricted or perTnanently restricted net assets.

(d) Revenue and Gaíns in Excess of Expenses and Losses

(e)

The consolidated statements of operations include revenue and gains in excess of expenses and

losses. Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
healthcare services are reported as revenue and expenses. Transactions incidental to the provision of
healthcare services are repofied as gains and losses. Changes in unrestricted net assets that are

excluded from revenue and gains in excess ofexpenses and losses, consistent with industry practice,

include changes in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-trading securities, contributions of
property, plant, and equipment (including assets acquired using contributions that by donor

restrictions were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such assets), changes in accrued pension

benefits other than net periodic benefit costs, and other.

Nel Patient Semice Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-palty
payors, and others for services rendered and includes estimated retroactive adjustments under

reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an

estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods, as final
settlements are determined.

(fl Investmenls and Investment Income

Investments, including assets whose use is limited or restricted, with readily determinable fair
values, are stated at fair value generally based upon quoted market prices. Money market accounts

and fixed income securities with a maturity of three months or less are included in cash and cash

equivalents on the consolidated balance sheet. Fixed income securities purchased with a maturity
greater than three months but less than twelve months are included in investments on the

consolidated balance sheet. Realìzed gains and losses and interest and dividends on funds held under

debt agreements, to the extent not capilalized, are classified as other operating revenue in the

10 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

consolidated statements of operations. Realized gains and losses, unrealized gains and losses on

trading securities, and interest and dividends on long-term investments are classified as nonoperating

gains and losses in the consolidated statements of operations. Unrealized gains and losses are

included in revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses as management considers all

investments to be trading securities, other than investments held in certain project funds' which are

considered other-than-tradin g securiti es.

FH invests in various investment securities including U.S. government securities, marketable equity

securities, fixed income securities, money market funds, mutual funds and an altemative investment.

The alternative investment is comprised of a commingled low volatility equity fund (Fund)

organized as a limited liability corporation. The Fund invests primarily in marketable global equity

securities with an investment objective to achieve a volatility level considerably less than the global

equity market as defined by the MSCI World Index. Fund redemptions can be made on any business

day with 30 calendar days' prior written notice.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market

volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably

possible that changes in the values of FH's investments could occur in the near term and that such

' changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in joint ventures in which 20%o To 50% interest is held are accounted for using the equity

method of accounting. Investments in joint ventures with less than a 20olo interest and for which FH

does not exercise significant control are accounted for using the cost method. Investments in which

greater than50Vo interest is held are consolidated with the recording of anoncontrolling interest in

consolidated joint venture within unrestricted net assets.

@) Inventorìes

Inventories are stated at cost, which is not in excess of market value'

(h) Property, Planl, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives. Buildings and equipment under capital leases are recorded at the net

present value of future minimum lease payments. Equipment under capital leases and leasehold

improvements are amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the

estimated useful life of the equipment or leasehold improvements.

Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions by donors that specify how the assets are to be

used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as

restricted contributions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those longJived assets

must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired

long-lived assets are placed in service.

l1 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

(t) Long-Lived Assels

FH periodically assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets (including property, plant, and

equipment) when indications of potential impairment, based on estimated, undiscounted future cash

flows exist. Management considers such factors as current results, trends, and future prospects, in
addition to other economic factors, in determining whether there is an impairment of the asset. FH
does not believe that there are any factors or circumstances indicating impairment of its long-lived
assets forthe years ended June 30,2014 and2013.

0 Costs of Bonowing

Expenses incurred on the issuance of fixed rate long-term debt and the original issue premium or
discount are deferred and amortized using the declining-balance method over the term of the debt.

Expenses incuned on the issuance of variable rate debt are deferred and amortized using the

straight-line method over the term of the underlying note for each issue.

Net interest costs, the associated premium, and deferred financing costs incurred on borrowed funds

during the period of construction are capitalized as a component of the cost of significant
construction projects.

(k) Cash and Cøsh Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include highly
liquid investments purchased with a maturity at date of purchase of three months or less, excluding
assets whose use is limited or restricted.

(0 fncome Taxes

FH and its affiliates, except FSC, WBSC, PPN, FHHP, Sussex, and Kewaskum are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (theCode) and are

exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section50l(a) of the Code. FSC,

WBSC, FHHP, Sussex, and Kewaskum are limited liability companies and are treated as

partnerships for income tax purposes. Income and losses are passed through to their members. PPN

is a nonstock corporation and earnings are subject to income tax.

FH applies ASCNo.740, Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income

taxes recognized in a company's financial statements. ASC No. 740 prescribes a more-likely
than-not recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and

measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken. Under ASCNo.740,Tax positions are

evaluated for recognition, derecognition, and measurement using consistent criteria and provide
more information about the uncertainty in income tax assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2014 and

2013, FH does not have an asset or liability recorded for unrecognizedtax positions.
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

(m) Derivølive Instrumenls

FH accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with ASCNo. 815, Derivatives and

Hedging, which requires that all derivaiives instruments be recorded as either assets or liabilities in

the Consolidated balance sheet at their respective fair values'

For hedging relationships, FH formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk management

objectivã aãd strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item, the nature of the

risk being hedged, ñów tn" hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be

assessedfand a description of thãrn"thod of measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking

all derivatives that áre designated as cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities in the

consolidated balance sheet.

The interest rate srvap agreements do not meet the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting treatment.

FH continues to carry aìí ofits derivatives at fair value and recognizes changes in their fair value as

nonoperating gains and losses in the consolidated statements ofoperations.

(n) Use of Estìmøtes

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported Jmôunts äfassets and liabilities and disclosure ofcontingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and

expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(o) ReclassiJications

Certain 2013 amounts have been reclassifred to conform to the 2014 consolidated financial statement

presentation.

Fair Value Measurements

FH applies the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about

Fair Value Measuremenls. ASU 2010-06 amends ASC SubtopicNo. S20-10, Fair Value Measurement -
Overall,to provide additional disclosure requirements for transfers into and out of Levels I and 2 and for

activity in Level 3 and to clarify other existing disclosure requirements.

ASC Subtopic No. 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a lìability in an orderly transaction between market participants at a measurement date. These

provisions descrite a fair value hierarchy that includes three levels of inputs to be used to measure fair

value. The three levels are defined as follows as inter reted for use by FH:

. Level 1 - Inputs into fair value methodology are based on quoted market prices in active markets'

Securities tyþically priced using level 1 inputs include listed equities and exchange-traded mutual

funds.

l3 (Continued)



The following methods and assumptions were used by FH in estimating the fair value of its financial
instruments:

a

O

a

a

a

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Level2 - Inputs into the fair value methodolory are based on quoted prices for similar items,
broker-dealer quotes, or models using market interest rates or yield curves. The inputs are generally
seen as observable in active markets for similar items for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the same term of the financial jnstrument. Securities typically priced
using level2 inputs include govemment bonds, other fixed income securities and commingled funds
where net asset value (NAV) is coroborated with observable data.

Level3 - Inputs into the fair value methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for the following approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of these instruments: cash and cash equivalents, patient and

other receivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and estimated settlements to third-party
payors.

Assets limited as to use, collateral held for securities loaned, and long term investments:
U.S. government securities, marketable equity securities, fxed income securities, money market
funds, and mutual funds are measured using quoted market prices; other observable inputs such as

quoted prices for similar assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the
assets at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held. The carrying value equals fair value.

Alternative investments are reported at the NAV reported by the Fund manager. Unless it is probable

that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount other than NAV, FH has concluded,
as a practical expedient, that the NAV approximates fair value.

Interest rate swaps: The fair value of interest rate swaps is determined using pricing models
developed based on the LIBOR swap rate and other observable market data. The value was
determined after considering the potential impact of collateralizalion and netting agreements,

adjusted to reflect nonperformance risk of both the counterpafi and FH. The carrying value equals
fair value.

Fair value of total long-term debt was $590,064 and $582,307 at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and is based upon borrowing rates currently available to FH for similar terms and

average maturities.

a

a
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The following table represents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
June 30, 2014:

Total

Quoted prices
in active

markets for
identical

assets
(Level l)

Significant
other

observable
inputs

(Level2)

Signilicant
unobservable

inputs
(Level3)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Collateral held for securities

loaned
Investments, excluding interest

receivable of$2,783:
U.S. government securities
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Money market funds and

mutual funds
Alternative investment:

Low volatility equity fund
Assets whose use is limited or

restricted, excluding interest
receivable of$34 and pledges

receivable of$869:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. government securities
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Money market funds and

mutual funds
Alternative investment:

Low volatility equity fund
Other

Total assets

Liabilities:
Payable under securities

lending agreement
Interest rate swap

agreements

Total liabilities

$ 1,726,491 878,761 846,871

$ 111,301

33s,433

240,800
521,236
152,002

196,060

35,3'17

111,301

521,236

196,060

16,854

17,084

16,226

335,433

240,800

152,002

35,317

4,722

76,680

I 6,854
4,722

17,084
76,680

16,226

691
2,085

691
1,226 859

8s9

$ 335,433

26,562

335,433

26,562

$ 361 ,995

15

361,995
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The low volatility equity fund's classification as Level 2 is based on FH's ability to redeem its interest at or

near the date ofthe consolidated balance sheet.

The following table represents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recuming basis at

June 30,2013:

Total

Quoted prices
in active

markets for
identical

assets

(Level l)

Signilicant
other

observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level3)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Collateral held for securities

loaned
Investments, excluding interest

receivable of$3,107:
U.S. government securities

Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Money market funds and

mutual funds
Assets whose use is limited or

restricted, excluding interest
receivable of$75 and pledges

receivable of $441:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. government securities
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Money market funds and

mutual funds
Other

Total assets

Liabilities:
Payable under securities

lending agreement
Interest rate swap

agreements

Total liabilities

$ I,533,518 666,048 866,735

$ 105,744

266,846

252,288
413,434
225,364

110,477

105,744

413,434

110,477

8,314

16,266

11,813

266,846

252,288

225,364

5,866

1t6,099

9,314
5,8ó6

16,266
116,099

1 1,8 l3
1,007 272 735

735

$ 266,846

26.049

266,846

26,049

$ 292,895

16

292,89s
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The following table is a rollforward of assets whose use is limited that were classified by FH within
Level 3 ofthe fair value hierarchy as defined above:

2014 2013

1,191
(133)
(323)

859 735

The availability of observable market data is monitored to assess the appropriate classification of financial
instruments within the fair value hierarchy. Changes in economic conditions or model-based valuation
techniques may require the transfer of financial instruments from one fair value level to another. In such

instances, the transfer is reported at the beginning ofthe reporting period. FH evaluated the significance of
transfers between levels based upon the nature of the financial instrument and size of the transfer relative
to total assets. For the year ended June 30, 2074,there were no significant transfers in or out of Levels l, 2,

or 3.

(3) Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted are summarized as follows

June 30
2014 2013

Fair value at beginning of year
Gains (losses) and investment income, net
Purchases, issuances, and write-offs, net

Fair value at end ofyear

At fair value:
U.S. government securities
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Money market funds and mutual funds
Alternative investment:

Low volatility equity fund

Total investments at fair value

At cost:
Interest receivable

Total investments

35,317

7,145,475 1 ,00 1,563

2,783 3,707

$ 1,148,198 1,004,610

$

s

735
124

$ 240,800
521,236
152,002
196,060

252,288
413,434
225,364
110,477
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June 30
20t4 l3

At fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. government securities
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Money market funds and mutual funds
Alternative investment:

Low volatility equitY fund
Other

Total assets whose use is limited at fair value

At cost:
Interest receivable
Pledges receivable

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted are summarized as follows

Assets whose use is limited or restricted
Under debt agreements (note 6)
Swap collateral (note 7)
By management:

For executive compensation agreements
For program development and physician recruitment
For other

By donors
Other

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted

$ 16,854
4,722

17,084
'76,680

16,226

8,3 14

5,866
16,266

116,099
ll,8l3

691
2,085 1,007

159,365134,342

869
34 75

441

s 135,245 159.881

June 30
2014 l3

$ 84,364
1,039

112,453
98

19,947
5,889

10,802
12,511

693

15,995
10,000
9,677

10,275
1,383

s 135,245 159.881

Assets whose use is limited or restricted are classified as current assets to the extent they are available to

meet current I iabilities.
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The composition of investment return on FH's cash and cash equivalents, investments, and assets whose

use is limited or restricted is as follows:

Year ended June 30
'¿ttt4 zut3

Interest and dividends on investments
Net realized gains and losses on sale of investments
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments

Total investment return

Other operating revenue:
Interest and dividend income
Net realized gains and losses

Nonoperating gains and losses - investment income
Nonoperating gains and losses - change in unrealized gains

and losses on investments
Other changes in unrestricted net assets - change in net

unrealized gains and losses on investments
Other changes in temporarily restricted investments:

Restricted investment income
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments

Interest eamings offset against capitalized interest cost

Total investment return

$ 26,988
34,'147
68,206

26,979
15,102
41,170

83.250s 129,941

Investment returns are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operation and changes in
net assets for the years ended June 30, 2014 and2013:

Year ended June 30
zu14 ztJt3

$ 864

59,469

67,989

(20s)

1,019
(17)

39,817

42,081

(1,218)

412
422
990

323
307
938

s 129,941 83,250

FH has a securities lending agreement with a fìnancial institution whereby fixed income and equity
securities are loaned to third parties in exchange for cash collateral that exceeds the market value of the

securities loaned. Collateral is marked to market daily to reflect changes in fair value of the securities

loaned. The fair market value of the securities loaned under this arangement was $328,753 and $260,105
at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The fair market value of the collateral received under this
arrangement was $335,433 and5266,846 at June30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The collateral held is

comprised of cash and cash equivalents, U.S. government securities, and fixed income securities. Under

the terms of the securities lending agreement, FH is not entitled to the unrealized gains on the invested

collateral and as such has not recognized the unrealized gains in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The change in unrealized gains and losses on the invested collateral was $0 for the years ended

June 30, 2014 and2013.The fair value of collateral was 102.\Yo and 102.6Yo of the fair value of securities

loaned at June 30,2014 and2013, respectively.

19 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HDALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2073

(Dollars in thousands)

(4) Property, Plant, and Equipment

Propefty, plant, and equipment are summarized as follows:

Land and land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Fixed equipment
Movable equipment
Construction in progress

Total property, plant, and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property, plant, and equiPment, net

(s)

47 582

1,383,174 1,225,943

584.839

s 733,598 641,104

June 30
z0t4 2013

$ 16,162
114,325
592,349
126,422
474,265

59,591

16,023
86,850

548,561
119,777
407,150

649 516

Construction in progress at June 30,2014 and 2013 primarily relates to the FMLH Center for Advanced

Care scheduled to open in the fall of 2075, which will include surgical, interventional, heart, vascular and

transplant services. Various software and other renovation projects and equipment at the hospital and clinic

campuses are also included in construction in progress at both June 30, 2014 and 2013. Contractually

committed costs for renovation and software projects totaled $103,807 at June 30,2014. During the year

ended June 30,2014, FH capitalized $4,514 of net interest cost, which is comprised of $5,504 of interest

cost less $990 ofinterest earned on unexpended bond proceeds. During the year ended June 30, 2013, FH

capitalized $3,161 of net interest cost, which is comprised of $4,099 of interest cost less $938 of interest

earned on unexpended bond proceeds.

Land Lease Agreement

In 1980, FMLH entered into a land lease agreement with Milwaukee County to lease the land on which the

hospital resides. The lease terms are for FMLH to pay one dollar annually through 2030, and a mutually

agreed-upon amount in years 2031 through2079.If the parties cannot mutually agree upon an amount, the

annual rent will be determined as fair market value of the leased land times 10Yo. In December 1995,

FMLH purchased certain assets of John L. Doyne Hospital (Doyne). As part of the purchase, FMLH
entered into an amendment to the original land lease agreement to include the land previously used by

Doyne. The lease payments on the new land lease are calculated as one dollar plus 5.25% of FMLH's
annual operating cash flow, as defined in the agreement, for each ofthe years through 2020 and one dollar

annually in years 2021 to 20'79.The lease agreements are accounted for as operating leases. Lease expense

has been recognized in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounting to $7,037 and

$10,771 forthe years ended June30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Cumulative amounts recognized under

the lease agreements since the leases' inception in 1995 approximate $85,406 through lune30,2074.
Payments under the lease agreements are made in the year subsequent to the year in which they relate'
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(6) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is summarized as follows

June 30
zut4 2013

Revenue bonds, Series 20054 - due in 2015 (effective rate of
5.35% for both years ended June 30, 2014 and2013)

Revenue bonds, Series 20094 - interest rates variable
based on market conditions (effective rate of
interest 3.28% in 20 13, refunded December I 1, 2013)

Revenue bonds, Series 20098 - interest rates variable
based on market conditions (effective rate of
interest 3.29% in 20 13, refunded December I l, 2013)

Revenue bonds, Series 2009C - annual principal payments
range from $2,945 to $22,885, plus interest each year
through 2039. Interest rates range from 4.00o/oto 5.25o/o

(effective rate of intere st of 5.14%o in 2014 and 5.12Yo

in20t3)
Revenue bonds, Series 20124 --due in sinking fund

installments ranging from $265 to $35,965 plus
interest each year through 2042, ranging from 4.00o/o to
5.00% (effective rate of interest of 4.86o/o in 2014 and
4ß7% in 2013)

Revenue bonds, Series 20134 - annual principal payments
range from 52,278 in 2015 to $3,005 in 2023 with a balloon
payment of $62,765 in2024.Interest rates variable
based on market conditions (0.75% at June 30,2014,
effective rate of interest 4.2o/o in2014)

Revenue bonds, Series 20138 - annual principal payments
range from 52,218 in 2015 to $2,865 in 2018 with a balloon
payment of $77,045 in2019.Interest rates variable
based on market conditions (0.46% at June 30,2074,
effective rate of intere st 3.9%o in 201 4)

Capital lease obligations
Other

Total debt

Less:
Current installments of long-term debt
Unamortized bond premium, net

Total long-term debt

s 424

173,820

153,815

87,593

424

89,925

89,920

176,720

1 55,1 00

62,225
879

87,593
67,821

632

565,698

9,533
4,295

575,193

9,655
(14,962)

$ 570,460 580,500

On December 77, 2073, WHEFA issued $90,048 of Series 2013A and $90,04B of Series 20138 variable

rate revenue bonds on behalf of the Obligated Group. The Series 2013A and 20138 bonds were issued as
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private placements each with a respective national bank. The proceeds from the Series 20134 and

Series 20138 bonds were used to refund the Series 2009A and 20098 bonds. The 20134 and 20138

private placements mature in2024 and2019, respectively.

On October 11,2012,V/HEFA issued $155,100 of Series 2012A revenue bonds on behalf of the Obligated

Group. The proceeds from the Series 2012A Bonds were used to legally defease the Series 2003 Bonds,

refund the Series 2001 Bonds and to finance certain Obligated Group projects'

The refunding resulted in a loss on early extinguishment of debt of $3,640, which is included in
nonoperating gains and losses in the 2013 consolidated statement of operations.

Pursuant to the terms of the bond trust indentures, each Obligated Group member is jointly and severally

liable for the guaranty of principal and interest on the revenue bonds issued by WHEFA on behalf of the

Obligated Group. The Master Trust Indenture related to the Series 20054, 2009C, 2012A,2013A, and

20138 and the continuing covenant agreements related to the 20134 and 20138 bonds also place limits on

the incurrence of additional borrowings and requires that the Obligated Group satisff certain measures of
financial performance as long as the bonds are outstanding.

Cash payments fo{ interest, net of amounts capitalized, and monthly swap settlements were $22,726 and

$19,536 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively'

Scheduled principal maturities on long-term debt and capital lease obligations for each of the next

five years and thereafter are as follows:

2015 $ 9,533
2016 70,230
2ol7 10,712

2018 11,1',79

2079 85,',777

Thereafter 438,267

$ 565,698

FH has entered into capital leases for cefiain medical office space through the year 2032.The capital lease

obligations were $61,821 and$62,225 at June 30,2014 and2013, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under capital leases at June 30, 2074 are as follows:

2015 $ 6,662
2016 6,795

2017 6,932

201g 7,0'71

2019 7'212
Thereafter 90,264

Total minimum lease

PaYments

Less amounts representing interest ranging
from 7 .81%o fo ll.lTYo

Present value ofnet
minimum lease payments $

124,936

63,715

61,827

FH has outstanding guarantees for payment ofcertain debt and capital expenditures ofanother corporation.

The debt guaranty is for an amount up to $4,450 as of June 30,2014. The capital expenditure guaranty,

shared with two other corporate entities, is for amounts ranging from $2,190 to $12,670, up to an aggregate

$34,885, for the twelve month periods ending June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2018.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The derivative instruments used by FH are interest rate swap agreements that are used to convert variable

rate interest on the long-term debt to fixed rate interest. The variable interest rate on the debt generally

exposes FH to variabiùty in cash flow in rising or declining interest rate environments. In convefiing

variable rate interest to a frxed rate, the interest rate swap effectively reduces the variability ofthe cash

flow ofthe debt.

(u) Objectives and Stralegies

FH, at times, uses variable rate debt to finance its operations. The debt obligations expose FH to

variability in interest payments due to changes in interest rates. Management believes that it is

prudent io limit the variability of a portion of its interest payments. To meet this objective,

management entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flows

resulting from interest rate risk.

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates, FH exposes

itielf toiredit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the

terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the

counterpafiy owes FH, which creates credit risk for FH. When the fair value of a derivative contract

is negative, FH owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not pose credit risk. FH minimizes the

credii risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high quality counterpafties.
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Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in
interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate contracts is managed by establishing and

monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be underlaken.

(b) Risk Manøgement Policies

FH assesses market risk by continually identif,ing and monitoring changes in interest rate exposures

that may adversely impact expected future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opportunities. FH
maintains risk management control systems to monitor market risk attributable to both the

outstanding or forecasted debt obligations, as well as the offsetting hedge positions. The risk
management control systems involve the use of analytical techniques, including cash flow sensitivity
analysis, to estimate the expected impact of changes in interest rates on future cash flows.

FH does not use derivative instruments for speculative investment purposes.

(c) Transactions

Consistent with the objectives set forth above, the Obligated Group's interest rate swap agreements

are matched to its Series 2009A and Series 20098 Bonds, which were refunded by the Series 20134
and Series 20138 revenue bonds. Under the terms of the interest rate swap agreements, the Obligated
Group pays a fixed rate on the bonds and receives a variable rate ofinterest equal to the three-month
LIBOR index, reset weekly.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps of $26,562 and $26,049 is included in other long-tetm
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The change in
fair value of the interest rate swaps of $(513) and $17,025 is included in nonoperating gains and

losses in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

The interest rate swap agreements for the Obligated Group at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

Type

Original
notional
amount Maturity date

Fixed
pay rate

Variable pay râtes at June 30
2014 2013

20094 bonds*
20098 bonds*

94,050 April I
94,050 April I

$ 2035
2035

3.366%
3.366

0.t57yo
0.157

0.l86Yo
0.1 86

* The Series 20094 and Series 20098 bonds were refunded by the Series 20134 and Series

20138 revenue bonds, as noted above.

Cash paid for monthly settlement under the interest rate swap agreements was $5,718 and$5,747 and

is included within interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations. No cash was
received under the interest rate swap agreements during the years ended June 30,2014 and 2013. FH
posted collateral as required under the interest rate swap agreements of$1,039 and $98 as ofJune 30,

2014 and 2013, respectively.
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(8) Net Patient Service Revenue

A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare - Inpatient acute care, most outpatient, and defined capital costs for services rendered to

Medicare beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per case. These rates vary

according to a payment classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.

Inpatient nonacute services, medical education, and certain organ acquisition costs related to

Medicare beneficiaries are paid based upon cost reimbursement methods, established fee screens, or

a combination thereof. FMLH, CMH, and SJCH are reimbursed for cost reimbursement items at

tentative rates with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits

thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The FMLH cost reports have been audited by the

Medicare fiscal intermediary through June 30, 2009. The CMH and SJCH cost reports have been

audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through June 30, 2010.

Medicaid - Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are

reimbursed primarily based upon prospectively determined rates.

Wisconsin's Economic Recovery Act includes a tax assessment on hospital and ambulatory surgery
-' center revenues. Funds collected under the tax are used to increase federal fundìhg for the Wisconsin

Medicaid program. FH recognized $45,351 and $42,725 of increased Medicaid reimbursement and

$33,398 and $32,569 of tax expense as a result of the law for the years ended June 30, 2014 and

2013, respectively. The increased Medicaid reimbursement and tax assessment expense are recorded

in net patient service revenue and other expense, respectively, in The 2014 and 2013 consolidated

statements of operations.

There are various other proposals at the federal and state levels that could, among other things, reduce

reimbursement rates, modify reimbursement methods, or increase managed care penetration, including

Medicare and Medicaid. The ultimate outcome of these proposals and other market changes cannot

presently be determined.

The percentage of net patient service revenue applicable to services provided to Medicare and Medicaid

patients was 35o/o for the years ended June30, 2014 and 2013. Laws and regulations governing the

Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. FH believes it is in
compliance, in all material respects, with all applicable laws and regulations and is not a\üare of any

pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such

regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations may be subject to future

government review and interpretation. Noncompliance with such laws and regulations could result in

repayments of amounts improperly reimbursed, substantial monetary fines, civil and criminal penalties,

and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

FH has received notices from the Medicare program requiring that they provide Medicare with

documentation for claims to carry out the Recovery Audit Contract (RAC) program. FH is responding to

these requests. Review of claims through the RAC program may result in a liability to the Medicare

program and could have an adverse impact on FH's net patient service revenue.
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FH, FMLH, CMH, SJCH, and CP also have entered into reimbursement agreements with certain

commercial insurance carriers and managed care organtzations. The basis for reimbursement under these

agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and

prospectively determined per diem rates.

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and2013,the consolidated statements of operations include $3,055 and

$6,000, respectively, ¿ìs an increase in net patient service revenue for changes in prior year estimates

related to third-par1y contractual allowances and retroactive settlements with third-pafty payors.

The Medical Electronic Health Record (EHR) Incentive Program (the Program) provides incentive
payments to eligible hospitals and professionals as they adopt, implement, upgrade, or demonstrate

meaningful use of certified EHR technology in their first year of parlicipation and demonstrate meaningful

use for up to five remaining participation years. FH accounts for the Program using International

Accounting Standards 20 (IAS20), Accounting þr Government Grants and Disclosures of Government

Assistance. FH applies the "ratable recognition" approach, which states that the grant income can be

recognized ratably over the entire "EHR" reporting period once the "reasonable assurance" income

recognition threshold of IAS20 is met. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,FH recognized 54,643

and $7,306, respectively, as other revenue related to Medicare and Medicaid EHR incentives, which have

been received or are expected to be received based on certifications prepared by management under the

appropriate guidelines for stage I attestation.

Patients' accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In evaluating the

collectibility ofpatients' accounts receivable, FH analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of
its major payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts and

provision for bad debts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in

evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For receivables associated with services

provided to patients who have third-party coverage, FH analyzes contractually due amounts and provides

an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision for bad debts, if necessary (for example, for expected

uncollectible deductibles and copayments on accounts for which the third-party payor has not yet paid, or

for payors who are known to be having financial difficulties that make the realization of amounts due

unlikely). For receivables associated with self-pay patients (which includes both patients without insurance

and patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-pafiy coverage exists for part of
the bill), FH records a significant provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis of its past

experience, which indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for
which they are fìnancially responsible. The difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates if
negotiated) and the amounts actually collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is

charged off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. Write-offs associated with self-pay patients were

$71,131 in2013 and $73,706 in2014. FH has not changed its charity care or uninsured discount policies

duringthe fìscal years 2013 or2014.

FH recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have third-party
payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For uninsured patients that do

not qualify for charity care, FH recognizes revenue on the basis of its standard rates for services provided

(or on the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided by policy). On the basis of historical

26 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

experience, a signifìcant portion of FH's uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the
services provided. Thus, FH records a signifìcant provision for bad debts related to uninsured patients in
the period the services are provided. Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounts
(before the provision for bad debts), is recognized in the period from these major payor sources, as follows:

2014 2013

Medicare
Medicaid
Managed car e I contr acted payor
Self-pay
Other

Net patient service revenue before provision
for bad debts

Medicare
Medicaid
Managed care/contracted payor
Self-pay
Other

$ 445,298
130,191
906,883

63,089
116,395

411,154
109,986
797,989

72,841
109 928

$ 1,661,856 1,501,898

(9) Concentration of Credit Risk

FH grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured under
third-par1y payor agreements. The mix of accounts receivable from patients and third-party payors as of
June 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

June 30
2014 2013

22%
9

42
22

5

21%
7

38
27

7

100% 100%

(10) Charity Care

FH provides uncompensated care based on the cost of providing care to patients, in accordance with
established policies. FH provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because FH does not pursue collection of
amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. FH applies the provisions
of ASU 2010-23, Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure, which requires that cost be used as the
measurement basis for charity care disclosure purposes and that cost can be identified as direct and indirect
costs of providing charity care. The amount of cost incumed for services and supplies furnished under FH's
charity care policy was $21,813 and $19,510 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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(r1) Related organizations and other significant Transactions

(a) The Meclicttl College of ll/isconsin,Inc. (MCll)

FH and MCV/ continue to pursue opportunities to enhance operational and clinical integration that

provides coordinated patient care in-the communities that are served. This led to the creation of

Froedtert & The Mediôal College of Wisconsin Community Physicians (CP), ajoint clinical practice

group to serve patients at community clinics in the service area. It also led to a Mission Related

Funds Flow Agìeement (Funds Flow Agreement) that summarizes the economic relationship that

supporls the joint missions of both organizations'

Froedtert & The Medical College of Wisconsin Community Physicians

Effective July 1, 2013, V/est Bend Clinic (WBC) was dissolved, merged all of its assets and

liabilities into Fpp and was removed as a member of the obligated Group. FPP subsequently

changed its name to Froedteft & The Medical College of Wisconsin Community Physicians (CP)'

The óperations of the clinical sites that were previously affiliated with MCW's Clinical Venture

Group were also transferred to CP. FH and MCW are the corporate members of CP. CP is not a

member of the Obligated Group. The financial position and results of operations of CP are included

in these consolidateã financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014.

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Funds Flow Agreement

FH and MCW entered into a Mission Related Funds Flow Agreement effective in July 2013 that

provides a formalized structure of the economic relationships that support the joint missions of both

organizations. The Funds Flow Agreement provides for payment of Fixed Contracted Services

palments for professional services agreements, medical directorships, graduate medical education

support, nonclinical support and other services.

The Funds Flow Agreement also provides for a Variable Performance Payment that is based on the

operating income ãf fg. The Variable Performance Payment provides funding for the shared

academiõ mission and additional venues in supporl of education, research and community

engagement.

Affiliate suppoft relating to the Funds Flow Agreement and previous payments made to MCV/

amounted tó $ZZ,SO¡ und $Ot,87O for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively'

(Jnco nso lidated Affilíates

United/Dynacare, LLC is an independent diagnostic services p-rovider of which FH has a 50%o

ownership intereit. The investm.ni in Unit.d/Dynacare, LLC of $17,313 and$14,233 at June30,

2014 and 2013, respectively, is included in investments in unconsolidated affiliates on the

consolidated balance iheets. ÉH purchased services of 540,797 and $43,919 from UnitedlDynacate,

LLC for the years ended June 10, ZOI+ and 2013, respectively, which are included in contract

services in the consolidated statements ofoperations.

(b)

28 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

During the year ended June 30, 2073, FH entered into a joint venture, Fresenius Medical Care

Midwest Dialysis (Fresenius), with MCW and an unrelated party. FH has a 15% ownership interest

in the joint venture. The investment in Fresenius of $8,918 and $8,518 at June 30,2074 and2013,
respectively, is included in investments in unconsolidated affiliates on the consolidated balance

sheets.

The following represents summary financial data (unaudited) for all unconsolidated affiliates,
including those described above:

2014 2013

Current assets
Current liabilities

V/orking capital

Properly and equipment, net
Other long-term assets
Long-term liabilities

Net assets

s '7'7,940 69,841
(20,305)

53,615

40,887
10,069

(20,441)

49,536

44,547
70,365

(30,066)

Revenues
Expenses

$ 144,130 134,382

224,074
(1 83,683)

792,738$

s

(1s4,826)

Excess ofrevenues over expenses 40,391 37,912

(c) United Hospitøl System,Inc.

FMLH entered into a membership and affiliation agreement with United Hospital System, Inc.
(UHS), a not-for-profit corporation located in Kenosha, Wisconsin, in 2001 for the purpose of
integrating activities in order to benefit the patients and communities served. FMLH records its

investment in UHS of $15,000 under the cost basis. The investment in UHS is noninterest bearing

and unsecured. The investment is included in deferred financing costs and other assets on the

consolidated balance sheets.

@ Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidaled Joinl Ventures

FH applies the guidance under ASC No. 810, Consolidation, for the presentation of noncontrolling
interests, reporting it as a separate component of net assets and including a schedule reconciling
beginning and ending balances ofcontrolling and noncontrolling interests ofnet assets in the notes to
the consolidated fi nancial statements.
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(Dollars in thousands)

Changes in unrestricted net assets attributable to FH and to noncontrolling interest in consolidated
joint ventures are as follows:

Non
controlling

interest

Balance, June30,2012

Revenues and gains in excess of
expenses and losses

Changes in net unrealized gains
and losses on other-than-trading
securities

Contributions and net assets
released from restrictions for
property, plant, and equipment

Change in accrued pension
benefits other than net periodic
benefit costs

Other

Changes in net assets

Balance, June 30,2013

Revenues and gains in excess of
expenses and losses

Changes in net unrealized gains
and losses on other-than-trading
securities

Contributions and net assets
released from restrictions for
property, plant, and equipment

Change in accrued pension
benefits other than net periodic
benefit costs

Other

Changes in net assets

Balance, June 30,2014

s 1,122,294 7,120,474 1,820

179,263 178,855

(1,218) ( I,218)

3,457 3,457

26,372

208,182 207,735

1,330,476 7,328,209 2,267

210,316 210,337 (2t)

(20s) (20s)

2,152 2,752

207,690 207

$ 1,53 8,166 1,535,923 2,243

Total
Controlling

interest

408

39308
26,372

269

441

(5,253)
680

(5,253)
683

714 (24)

(12) Employee Benefit Plans

(a) DeJined Contribution Plans

FMLH previously sponsored a defined contribution pension plan and a 403(b) thrift plan covering

substantially all FMLH employees, which were frozen effective December 31,2001.
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(Dollars in thousands)

Community Health Care Services of Menomonee Falls, Inc. (CHCS) previously sponsored a a03@)

thrift plan and a 401(a) plan, which were frozen effective December 31,200'7. Sponsorship of the

CHCS 401(a) plan was transferred to FH and effective January 1,2011 renamed the Froedtert

Health, Inc. 401 (a) Retirement Plan (FH Retirement Plan).

FH created a new 403(b) plan, the Froedtert & Community Health, Inc. 403(b) Plan (F&CH 403(b)
Plan) covering the employees of FH, FMLH, and CMH effective January 1, 2008, employees of
SJCH and WBC effective January 7,2070, and employees of FPP effective September 3, 2010. The

F&CH 403(b) plan provides a nonelective employer contribution, which varies based on employee's

service from 3Yo of pay for employees with less than l0 years of service to 5Yo of pay for employees

with 26 or more years of service. The nonelective employer contribution is also provided for those

employees that no longer qualiff for future service in the CMH defined benefit plan. It also provides

a matching employer contribution of 50Yo of the first SYo of pay deferred by an employee. FH's
contributions to these plans are made annually. FH's pension expense for the plan was $21,667 and

520,448 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(b) DeJìned BeneJìt Plans

FMLH has a defined benefit plan (the FMLH Plan), sponsored by FH, that covers certain former
Milwaukee County employees who became employees of FMLH. FMLH and United/Dynacare, LLC
are responsible for funding 10% of the FMLH Plan, with Milwaukee County funding 90%. FMLH
has recorded the difference between the projected benefit obligation and the fair market value of
plan. There is a corresponding long-term receivable from UnitedlDynacare, LLC and Milwaukee
County for their portion of the unfunded projected benefit obligation of $6,052 and $l1,634 at

June30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, included in defened financing costs and other assets, net on

the consolidated balance sheets. FMLH's pension expense for the FMLH Plan was $191 and $720
for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Data relative to the FMLH Plan for the years ended June 30,2014 and2013 follows

2014 2013

Change in pension benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning ofyear
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Expenses paid
Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at end ofyear

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contri butions
Expenses paid
Benefits paid

Fair value ofplan assets at end ofyear

Funded status

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit costs
and included as an accumulated reduction to
unrestricted net assets:

Prior service cost
Accumulated loss

Unrecognized pension costs

Net periodic pension cost is comprised of the following:
Service cost
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Net amorlization and deferral
Recognized actuarial loss

Net periodic pension cost

55,805 45,961

$ (6,026) (13,296)

2014 2013

$

$

$

4,566

51

9.2064,562

9,257

$ 59,257
879

2,893
1,139
(36e)

(1,968)

66,475
1,740
2,600

(8,867)
(346)

61,831

1 7

59,257

45,961
8,300
3,881
(36e)

(1,968)

39,425
5,831
2,796
(346)

(1,745)

4

8',79

2,893
(3,043)

41
s26

7,140
2,600

(2,785)
47

2,657

$ 7,302 3,653
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2014 2013

Assumptions used:
Discount rate for measurement of pension obligation
Discount rate for determining net periodic pension cost
Rate of increase in compensation levels
Expected return ofplan assets

Equity securities
Debt securities
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

4.35%
4.99
3.25
6.50

499%
3.98
4.00
7.00

The long-term rate ofretum on assets reflects historical returns and future expectations for returns in
each asset class, as well as targeted asset allocation percentages within the pension portfolio'

FMLH's investment strategy is of a long-term nature and is intended to ensure that funds are

available to pay benefits as they become due and to maximize total return at an appropriate level of
investment risk.

As of June 30,2074 and 2013, the Mercer Above Mean Yield Curve was used to select the discount

rate used to measure liabilities of the FMLH Plan.

The employer contribution for the FMLH Plan for the year ending June 30, 2015 is estimated to be

$3,086. The benefits expected to be paid in each year from 2015 through 2079 are expected to be

52,415,52,570,52;33,52,926, and $3,135, respectively. The aggregate benefits to be paid in the

five years from2020 through 2024 are expected to be $18,441. The expected benefits to be paid are

based on the same assumptions used to measure the projected benefit obligation at June 30,2014.

The amounts that will be amortized from unrestricted net assets into net periodic benefit cost in fiscal

year 2075 are estimated to be $4.

The weighted average asset allocation of the pension plan at June 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 2013

6t%
37

2

63%
35

2

100Yo 100%

JJ (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

FMLH intends to provide an appropriate range of investment options that span the risk/return
spectrum. The investment options will allow for constructjon of a portfolio consistent with plan

circumstances, goals, time horizons, and tolerance for risk. Major asset classes to be offered include:

Target
Asset class

Equity securities
Debt securities
Other

s0%-70%
3Ùo/o - 50%

-%

CMH has a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan (the CMH Plan), sponsored by FH, which
covers substantially all employees of CMH who work at least 1,000 hours in a 12-consecutive month
period. CMH funds the amount calculated by the CMH Plan's consulting actuary to meet the
minimum Employee Retirement Income Security Act funding requirements. The CMH Plan uses the
projected-unit-credit-cost actuarial method. The CMH Plan amortizes prior service cost on a

straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of employees expected to receive
benefits under the CMH Plan. Actuarial gains or losses are deferred to the extent that, as of the
beginning ofthe year, the unrecognized net gain or loss does not exceed 10Yo of the greater ofthe
projected benefìt obligation or the fair value ofplan assets. Ifrecognition is required, the excess gain

or loss is amortized in the same manner as the prior service cost.

Effective December3l,2007, the CMH Plan no longer accepted new participants. No additional
benefits will accrue for participants who have not attained age 40 or those with less than five years of
vesting service as of December 3 1, 2007 . Participation in a defìned contribution plan was offered to
participants who were affected by this change.
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Data relative to the CMH Plan for the years ended June 30,2014 and2013 follows:

June 30
2014 2013

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning ofyear
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain)
Expenses paid
Benefits paid

Projected benefìt obligation at end ofyear

Change in plan assets:
Fair value ofplan assets at beginning ofyear
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Expenses paid
Benefits paid

Fair value ofplan assets at end ofyear

Funded status

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit costs
and included as an accumulated reduction to
unrestricted net assets:

Prior service cost
Accumulated loss

Unrecognized pension costs

Net periodic pension cost consists of the following:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net amortization and defenal
Recognized actuarial loss

Net periodic pension cost

98, I 35
2,477
4,912

16,138
(443)

(2,668)

106,315
2,909
4,350

(12,724)
(413)

(2,302)

$

t19.2ll 98,135

71,237
12,781
6,987
(443)

(2,668)

59,682
8,999
5,271
(413)

(2,302)

87,894 71,237

s(3 1,317) (26,898)

June 30
zut4 20t3

s

s

$

105 148
25,3223l 150

37,255 25,4',70

2,417
4,972

(4,495)
43

2,624

2,909
4,350

(4,317)
45

4,706

7,693

35

s 5,621
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June 30
2Ut4 20t3

Assumptions used:
Discount rate for measurement of pension obligation
Discount rate for determining net periodic pension cost
Rate of increase in compensation levels
Expected long-term rate ofretum on assets

Equity securities
Debt securities
Other

Total

4.45%
5.14

3.00 - 6.00
6.50

5.r4%
4.14

3.30 - 4.00
7.00

The long-term rate of return on assets reflects historical retums and future expectations for retums in

each asset class, as well as targeted asset allocation percentages within the pension porlfolio. CMH's
investment strategy is ofa long-term nature and is intended to ensure that funds are available to pay

benefits as they become due and to maximize the investments' total return at an appropriate level of
investment risk.

As of June 30,2014 and 2073, the Mercer Above Mean Yield Curve was used to select the discount

rate used to measure liabilities of the CMH Plan.

The minimum employer contributions for the CMH Plan for the year ending June30, 20l5.are
estimated to be $7,410. The benefits expected to be paid in each year from 2015 through 2019 are

$3,076, $3,350, 53,'765,54,268, and $4,889, respectively. The aggregate benefits to be paid in the

fiveyears from2020 through 2024 are533,972. The expected benefits to be paid are based on the

same assumptions used to measure the projected benefit obligation at June 30,2014.

The amounts that will be amortized from unrestricted net assets into net periodic benefit cost in fiscal

year 2075 are estimated to be $43.

The weighted average asset allocation of the CMH Plan at June 30 follows:

June 30
2014

61%
37

2

63%
35

2

100% 100%
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CMH intends to provide an appropriate range of investment options that span the risk/return
spectrum. The investment options will allow for construction of a portfolio consistent with plan

circumstances, goals, time horizons, and tolerance for risk. Major asset classes to be offered include:

Target
Asset class percentage

Equity securities
Debt securities
Other

50%-70%
30%-50%

-%

Fair Value Measurements

The following methods and assumptions were used by FH in estimating the fair value of its financial
instruments of the FMLH and CMH defined benefit plans (the Plans):

. Fair values of the Plans' investments are estimated based on prices provided by its investment
managers and its custodian bank. Fair value for cash and cash equivalents, corporate stocks,
pooled equity funds, international equity funds, U.S. government securities, corporate and

foreign bonds, and annuity contracts are measured using quoted market prices; other

observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets; quoted prices in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets at the reporting date multiplied by quantity held.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Plans apply the provisions of ASC Subtopic No. 715-20-50, Defined Benefit Plans - Disclosure,
for fair value measurements of financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value
measurements of nonfìnancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis. ASC Subtopic No. 715-20-50 establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
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The following table presents the Plans' fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured

at fair value on a recurring basis as ofJune 30,2014:

Total

Quoted
prices in

active
markets for

identical
assets

(Level 1)

Significant
other

observable
inputs

(Level2)

Significant
unobserryable

inputs
(Level 3)

Plan assets:

Collateral for securities Ioaned

Investments:
Cash and short-term

investments consisting

of money
market funds

Corporate stocks
Pooled equity funds

International equitY funds

Corporate and foreign bonds

U.S. government securities

Annuity contract

Total

$ 68,343

2,749
50,974
21,961
74,515
22,113
28,942
2.445

2,749
50,974
21,961
14,51 5

68,343

22,113
28,942

2.445

$2 12.042 90, l 99 I 19,398 2,445

Liabilities:
Payable under securities

lending agreement $ 68,343 68,343

The following table is a rollforward of the Plan's assets and liabilities that were classified by FH

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined above:

2,348

(6)

103

Fair value at June 30,2013
Gains/losses and investment

income, net
Purchases, issuances, and

write-offs, net
Contributions, disbursements, net

Fair value at June 30,2014

$

38

$ 2,445
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The following table presents the Plans' fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured

at fair value on a recuring basis as of June 30,2013:

Total (Level 1)

Quoted
prices in

active
markets for

identical
assets

Signilicant
other

observable
inputs

(Level2)

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

Plan assets:

Collateral for securities loaned $

Investments:
Cash and short-term

investments consisting
of money
market funds

Corporate stocks
Pooled equity funds
Intemati onal equity funds
Corporate and foreign bonds

U.S. government securities
Annuity contract

Total $

2,595
43,116
18,594
11,163
18,298
21,084
2,348

2,595
43,116
18,594
I I ,163

48,589 48,589

18,298
21,084

2.348

165,787

Liabilities:
Payable under securities

lending agreement $ 48,589 48,589

The following table is a rollforward of the Plan's assets and liabilities that were classified by FH

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined above:

1,887

(212)

73
600

$ 2,348

FH has a securities lending agreement with a financial institution whereby fixed income and equity

securities are loaned to third parties in exchange for cash collateral that exceeds the market value of
the securities loaned. Collateral is marked to market daily to reflect changes in fair value of the

75,468 _8?,nL __4n

Fair value at June 30,2012
Gains/losses and investment

income, net
Purchases, issuances, and

write-offs, net
Contributions, disbursements, net

Fair value at June 30,2013

$
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securities loaned. The fair market value of the securities loaned under this arrangement was $66,967
and 547,276 at June 30,2014 and2073, respectively. The fair market value of the collateral received

under this arrangement was $68,343 and $48,589 at June 30,2014 and 2013, respectively. Under the

terms of the securities lending agreement, FH is not entitled to the unrealized gains on the invested

collateral and as such has not recognized the unrealized gains at June30, 2014 and 2013. The fair
value of collateral was 102.1% and l02.8Yo of the fair value of securities loaned at June 30,2014 and

2013, respectively.

(c) Poslretirement Medical Plan

FMLH has an unfunded postretirement medical plan (the FMLH Medical Plan), sponsored by FH,
that covers certain former Milwaukee County employees who became employees of FMLH. These

employees had less than 15 years of vesting service and were not vested in Milwaukee County's
postretirement medical benefit plan. FMLH is responsible for providing the postretirement benefit
coverage for this population if they achieve 15 years of vesting service (Milwaukee County &
Froedtert combined) and they retire from FMLH.

The projected benefit obligation at June 30,2074 and2013 using a discount rate of 4.36Yo and 5.02o/o

was $4,107 and $3,342, respectively, of which $184 and $138, respectively, are included in
shofi-term liabilities and $3,923 and $3,204, respectively, are included in other long-term liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets.

(13) Professional Liability Insurance

FMLH, CMH, SJCH, and CP have professional liability insurance for claim losses of less than $1,000 per

claim and 53,000 per year for professional liability claims incurred during a policy year, regardless of
when the claim is reported (claims-occurred basis). Losses in excess of these amounts are covered through
the FMLH, CMH, SJCH, and CP mandatory participation in the Injured Patients' and Families

Compensation Fund of the State of Wisconsin. FH applies the provisions of ASU No. 2070-24,
Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, which clarifies that a healthcare

entity should not net insurance recoveries against a related malpractice claim liability or similar liability
and which is consistent with the guidelines in ASC Subtopic 210-20, Balance Sheet - Offsetting. FH has

recorded an estimated insurance recovery of $1,813 and $2,727 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

and a related insurance liability of $1,525 and $2,100 at June 30,2014 and2073, respectively.

(14) Commitmentsand Contingencies

(a) Leases

FH, FMLH, CMH, SJCH, CP, and PPN lease equipment and office space under the terms of various

operating leases. Rent expense for these leases was $29,031 and $26,352 for the years ended

June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, included in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Future minimum operating lease payments, excluding the land lease 'with Milwaukee County
(note 5), that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30,

2014 are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

11,770
11,494
10,075
8,785
7,1 80

23,990

s

FMLH has agreed to lease certain space to MCW through the year 2025 under an operating lease that
calls for a base rent and additional rent allocated for the expenses incured. Rental income of $5,297
and $5,740 for space leased to MCV/ is included in other operating revenue for the years ended

June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, in the consolidated statements of operations. Also included in
other operating revenue for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was a total of $3,603 and

$3,531, respectively, for certain other leased space to MCW and United/Dynacare,LLC.

(b) Health Insurance

FH has a self-insured health plan that covers substantially all liability for health costs associated with
claims for employees up to ceftain limits under a commercial stop-loss agreement. Provisions for
self-insured health claims include the ultimate cost of claims reported and claims incurred but not
reported as of the consolidated balance sheet dates. Included in other accrued expenses at June 30,

2014 and2073 are estimated amounts payable forhealth insurance claims incurred as of such dates

of $6,5 I 2 and 56,47 4, respectively.

(c) Litigation

FH is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that are incidental to its normal business

activities. In the opinion of FH, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not
materially affect the consolidated operations or net assets of FH.

41 (Continued)



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and2013

(Dollars in thousands)

GA Regulatory Inveslígation and Other

The U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory
investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. FH is subject to these regulatory

efforts. Additionally, the laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid, and other

government health care programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation, making
compliance an ongoing challenge for FH and other health care organizations. Recently the federal

government has increased its enforcement activity, including audits and investigations related to
billing practices, clinical documentation, and related matters. FH maintains a system-wide

compliance program and conducts audits and other activities to identifo potential compliance issues,

including overpayments to governmental payors. Management is currently unaware of any

regulatory or compliance matters that may have a material adverse effect on FH's consolidated

fìnancial position or results ofoperations.

(e) The Patient Protectíon and Affordable Cøre Act

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010 (often referred to, collectively, as the Affordable Care Act of the health

care reform law), was signed into law on March 23, 2010. The statute changed how health care

services are delivered and reimbursed through a variety of mechanisms. The law contains stronger

antifraud enforcement provisions and provides additional funding for enforcement activity.

On May 6,2011, CMS issued a final rule establishing a value-based purchasing program for acute

care hospitals paid under the Medicare Inpatient Prospective Payment System. Beginning in federal

fiscal year 2013, incentive payments are made based on achievement of or improvement in a set of
clinical and quality measures designed to foster improved clinical outcomes. FH continues to

monitor the impact of this and other proposed regulations as they become finalized and implemented.

(15) Subsequent Events

FH has signed a letter of intent and is currently pursuing an agreement with Ministry Health Care, Inc. to
purchase an ownership interest in Network Health, Inc., a Wisconsin based insurance plan. The transaction

is expected to be closed by the end ofcalendaryear20T4.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 17, 2014 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued, noting no additional subsequent events requiring recording or

disclosure in the financial statements or related notes to the financial statements.

42



FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Balmce Sheet Infomation

June 30,2014

(In thousmds)

Froedtert
Memorial
Lutheran
Hospital

Froedtert
Hospital

Foundation

Froedtert
Surgery
Center

Eliminations

consolidating

Schedule I

and

entries
Assets

Cunent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Assets wlìose use is limited
pãti"nì u..ount. ."ceivable, net of estirnated uncollectibles of $44,100

Other receivables
lnventories
Coìlateral held for securities loaned

Prepaids and other

Total cunent assets

Investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Property, plant, æd equiPment. net

Defened financing costs md other æsets, net

Total assets

Liabil¡t¡s and Net Assets

Cunent liabilities:
Cunent installments of long-tem debt

Accounts paYable

Accrued expenses
Payable under securities lending agreement

Esiimated sefilements to third-pafiy payors

Total cunent liabilities

Long-term debt, less currenÌ installments

Other long-tem liabilities

Total liabilities

Net æsets (deficit):
Umestricted:

Uùestricted net assets of Froedtef Health,Inc md Affiliates

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures

Total unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Pemanentìy restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net æsets

$ 16,657

(430)
779

268

4'

?
962

_
1,182 3,247 (430)

13,335
to,469

1,665

24.s86 4,912 (21.157)

-
361 437 (430)

362 106 (430)

-

362 '106 (43!L

2,t53

128,442
21,286
14,678

3,265

184,328

108,988
2,r43

433,473
21,378

$ 750,310

$83
29,743
45,951

o ost

85,735

550
10,443

96,728

ó28,958

628,958

24,258
366

6s3,582

$ 750,310

\4,343

14,343

9,915
366

4,206 (4,206)
2,1 03

(2,103)

(24,258)
(366)

4,206

24 624 4.206 (26.127)

24.986 4,912 (27,157)

645,404

9,915
366

655.685

753.05 I

97.366

ó43,30ì
2,1 03

86,373

550
10,443

753,05 I

q q5?

83
30,1 1 I
46,221

I 88,327

I 3,335
94,833

40
435,138

21.378

3.312

19,030

t29,221
21,818
14,946

Consolidated
Froedtert
Memorial
Lutheran
Hosp¡tal
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Balmce Sheet Information

June 30, 2014

(ln thousmds)

Community
Memorial
Hospital

s 7,411

20,549
5,131
4,015

Community
Memori¿l

Foundation

5,332

t,713

Community
Outpatient

Hslth
Seruices

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entries

(s,332)

(1,713)

Schedule I

Assets

CuÍent æsets:
Cash md cash equivalents
Assets whose use is limited
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of $44,100
Other receivables
Inventories
Collateral held for securities loaned
Prepaids and other

Total cu[ent assets

Investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted
Investments in unconsohdated affi liates
Property, plant, md equipment, net
Defened financing costs and other æsets, net

Total assets

Liabilitie and Net Assets

Cunent liabilities:
Cunent installments of long-term debt
Accounts payabìe
Accrued expenses
Payable under securities lending agreement
Estimated settlements to third-party payors

Total cunent liabilities

Long-tem debt, less cment installments
Other long-tenn liabilities

Total liabilities

Net æsets (deficit):
Uuestricted:

Urestricted net âssets of Froedtert Health, Inc. md Affiliates
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures

Total unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Pemmently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net æsets

1,1 88

38,894

r,05r j
4s 256 (417)

1,096 269 (417)

2,46tt'? 
- 

tr'o+s¡

-

1,481 269 (7,462)$ 142,935

t3,230
90,801

l0

96,2t8

96,2r8

1,713

$

31,3r7

45,004

8,434 436 7
4,578

=-b/)

13,61 436 7

436 1 t411\

$

(417)

(411)

5,332 262

262

(s,332)

Consolidated
Community
Memorial
HosDital

20,549
5,615

8,415

4,015

I,1 88

39,842

2,461
3,924
6,1 85

90,801
l0

t43.223

s,460
4,578

6'7 5

I 3,713

3 1.3 l7

45 030

96,480

96,480

|,713

98 r93

143.223
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Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets whose use is limited
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of $44,100
Other receivables
Inventories
Collateral held for securities loaned
Prepaids and other

Total curent assets

Investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted
Investments in unconsolidated affi liates
Property, plmt, and equipment, net
Defened financing costs md other assets, net

Total assets

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC, AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information

June 30, 2014

(In thousmds)

St Joseph's
Community

Hospital

7,694
3,369

tA96

12,559

St. Joseph's
Community
Foundation

1,030

1,030

Eliminations

consolidating
entries

(1,02e)

(1,02e)

Schedule I

and

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

$

$

Cunent liabilities:
Cunent installments of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable under securities lending agræment
Estimated settlements to third-party pâyors

Total cunent liabilities

Long-tem debt, less cment installments
Other long-tem liabilities

Total liabilities

Net æsets (deficit):
Un¡estricted:

Utrestricted net assets of Froedtert Health, Inc. md Afñliates
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures

Totaì unrestricted

Temporarily
Pemanently

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$

restricted
restricted

$

21,261

26,620
8,919

20
78,746

I 35.566

1.496

7,695
3,369

12,s60

2.34t

14.901

120,148

120,148

515
2

r 20.6ó5

135,56ó

Consolidated
St. Joseph's
Community

HosDital

4,69t
373

l 1,999
1,539
2;431

228
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Curent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets whose use is limited
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of $44,100
Other receivables
Inventories
Collateral held for securities lomed
Prepaids and otlrer

Totâl current assets

Investments
Assets whose use is limited or restricted
Investments in unconsolid¿ted affi liates
hoperty, plant, md equipment, net
Defened finmcing costs and other assets, net

Total assets

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 73,012

$

42r,803

1,105,782
26,875
39,311

100,216
4,662

$ 1,698,649

8,591

335,433
4,767

335,433

629,979

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information

June 30, 2014

(In thousads)

Froedtert FroedtertHeåltb
Health Hometown

(Parent Only) Pharmacy

4'1r,t 6 1,457 -
569,910
)Ás6¿ 

- -

1,068,670 1,457 __:

$

227

386
139
860

l0

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entries

Schedule I

r,622

Cunent liabilities:
Cunent installments of long-tem debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable under securities lending agreement
Estimated settlements to third-party payors

Total cunent liabilities

Long-tem debt, less cuent installments
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net æsets (deficit):
Umestricted:

Utrestricted net assets ofFroedtert Health, Inc. a¡d Afñliates
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventues

Total unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Pemanently restricted

Total net æsets

Total liabilities ud net assets

9,450
34,314
92,999

r,43gj

v (42r)
140

ó30,1 19

630.1 19

1.100.246

9,4s0
35,',t53
93,0t7

335,433

473,653

569,910
26,564

\.070.127

r40
629,979

423,425

t,l 05,782
26,87s
39,030

r00,315
4.819

1,700,246

Consolidated
Froedtert
Hslth

(Parent Onlv)

73,239

386
8,730

860
335,433

4,777
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Schedule I

Curent assets:
Cash a¡rd cash equivalents
Assets whose use is limited
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibtes of $44,1 00
Other receivables
Inventories
Collateral held for securities loaned
Prepaids and otìrer

Total current assets

Investments
Assets whose use is limited or resricted
Investments in unconsolidated affi liates
Property, plant, md equipment, net
Defened finmcing costs and other assets, net

Total æsets

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information

June 30, 2014

(In thousands)

Assets

Li¡bilities and Net Assets

F&MC\Y
Community
Physicians

Progrssive
Physician
Network

3,879

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entries

(st,676)

(51,676)

(51,676)

n

288

71

t
205

64

$

3,823
56

108,t,r!

5,578
321

15,319
25,092

46,579 364 (5r,676)

(51,676)3'.15

2s,587
850

$ 76,016

$
Cunent liabilities:

Cunent instalìments of long-tem debt
Accouts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable under securities lending agreement
Estimated settlements to third-party payors

Total cunent liabilities

Long-term debt, less cunent installments
Other ìong-tem ìiabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted:

Umestricted net assets of Froedtert Health, Inc. md Afüliates
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures

Total unresricted

Temporuily
Permanently

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

23,284

3,213

26.l91 3,879 (51,676)

restricted
restricted

49,519 (3,504)

49,sr9 (3,504)

49,519 (3,504)

$ 76,016 37s (5r,676)

1.550.677

2 756 801

668,122

I,148,198
134,55t

45,275
733,598

2',t.057

2'156 801

q 511

34,214
t70,423
335,433

t2,t23

56t,786

570,460
73.878

t-206.124

2243
1,535,923

1,538,16ó

12,143
368

Consolidated
Froedtert

Health, lnc,

I I t,301
694

t'17 ,47 4
I 1,189
22,457

335,433
9.57 4

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Operations lnfomation

Year ended June 30, 2014

(In thousmds)

Froedtert
Memorial
Lutheran
Hospital

$ 1,169,91 I
55,450

1,1 14,461

32,3s1

1,146,812

274,793
72,r66

238,721
87,246

I I 1,804
39,7r0

129,087

1,060y'O5

86,401

2,378

(108)

88,677

532
(531)

Froedtert
Hospital

Foundation

Froedtert
Surgery
Center

3',79

Eliminations

consolidating
entri6

(r74)

(17 4)

(1,929)

(2,r 03)

Schedule 2

and

Net patient sewice revenue:

Ñet patient sewice revenue before provision for bad debts

Provision for bad debts

Net patient seNice revenue

Other operating revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salries
Fringe benefits
Supplies
Contract sewices
Affiliate support
Depreciation and mortiztion
Interest
Other
Corporate allocations

Total expenses

Operating revenue in excess (deficient) of expenses

Nonoperating gains and losses:

Investment income
Change in net umealized gains and losses on trading securities

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Loss on early extinguishment ofdebt
Loss on disposal ofproperty, plant, md equipment

Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses

Other chmges in unrestricted net æsets:

Transfers (to) from affiliates
Change in'nát uuealized gains md losses on other-than-trading securities

Contr-ibutions and net asséts released from restriction for property' plant, ¿rd equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase in uffestricted net æsets

Utrestricted net assets (deficiÐ at begiming of yer

Uüestricted net assets (deficit) at end ofyeu

7,792

---: 

474

7,318

1,545 64 (726)

1,s45 7,382 ('726\

(441
(rr1

1,503 I,S05

2.02s 7.030 (5s2)

(480) 352 (r14)

351

410
1ll

I

1,519
657

I,839
831

623
806

949

(rro)

t09

531

$

12,s66
94,306

(445,402)
(205)

2,000

(1)

(3)

348

3,858 999.440

(354,036)

64s.404

(205)
2,109

532

(3)

89,803

(446,272)

r.068.908

3,001
806

(109)

86,105

I,t2l,1'79

33.234

l.t 55.0 I 3

97,6t4
t29,08'7

2'76,281
't2,823

240,567
88,077

I I r,804
40,089
t2,566

Consolidated
Froedtert
Memorial
Lutheran
Hosoital

1,1',77 ,703
55-924
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Operations l¡fomation

Year ended June 30, 2014

(ln thousands)

Community
Outpatient

Helth
Senices

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entris

Schedule 2

Community Community
Memorial Memorial
Hospital Foundation

Net patient sewice revenue:
Net patient seruice revenue before provision for bad debts

P¡ovision fo¡ bad debts

Net patient seryice revenue

Other operating revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Sala¡ies
Fringe benefits
Supplies
Contract seNices
Atfiliate support
Depreciation æd amortization
Inlerest
Other
Corporate allocations

Total expenses

Operating revenue in excess (deficient) ofexpenses

Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment income
Chæge in net urealized gains and losses on fading secuities
Chmge in fair value of interest rate swaps

Loss on early extinguishment ofdebt
Loss on disposal of property, plmt, æd equipment

Revenue md gains in excess ofexpenses md losses

Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Transfers (to) from affiliates
Chmge in net urealized gains md losses on other-tban-trading securities
Contributions md net assets released from restriction for property, plmt, and equipment
Chmge in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase in unrestricted net assets

Umestricted net assets at beginning ofyeæ

Umestricted net assets at end ofyeã

s

(e5e)

(e59)

(l5e)

I 85,1 22
5,1 05

r 80,017

5,179 747 8l I

185,t96 747 8ll

qn ØÐ

-

773 (434)

38 (525)

269

:

--

s25 38 (525)

(1)

(4s)

j
12 1 18

* t (",r)
4,825 223 (4,82s)

_lll2_ ------ 15 1j?ì

6t,944
t7,293
33,504

7,690
)) 7))

8,828
? llì?
13,956 813
'r7 1)) -_
194,862 813

(e,666) (66)

107

249

(e4)

(9,7 s9)

(72,747)

(5,78s)

(38)

(88,32e)

184,541

s 9ó,218

t5
(5,785)

(7)

(9,72t)

(72,792)

t84;t'70

(88,290)

96.480

)) )'))
8,828

61,892
t7,293
33,7 53

7,690

2,303
14,91 I
11 1)1

I 96-0 l4

(r0.2 l 9)

268
322

2

(94\

Consolidated
Community
Memorial
Hosoital

1 85,1 22
5,1 05

I 80,01 7

5.-178

I 85.795
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Net patìent sewice revenue:
Net patient sewice revenue before provision for bad debts

Provision for bad debts

Net patient seruice revenue

Other operating revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Supplies
Contract seruices
Affiliate support
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Other
Coçorate allocations

Total expenses

Operating revenue in excess (deficient) of expenses

Nonopemting gains md losses:
Investment income
Change in net urælized gains md losses on fading securities
Chmge in fair value ofinterest rate swaps

Loss on euly extinguishment ofdebt
Loss on disposal ofproperty, plant, and equipment

Revenue and gains in excess ofexpenses and losses

Other chuges in unresficted net ass€ts:
Transfers (to) from afüliates
Change in net unrealiæd gains and losses on otlìer-than-tading securities
Contributions and net assets releåsed from restiction for property, plant, a¡d equipment
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Fou¡dation
Other

Incrase in un¡estricted net assets

Utrestricted net æsets at begiming of year

Urestricted net assets at end ofyear

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Operations Infomation

Year ended June 30, 2014

(In thousmds)

Eliminations
St Joseph's St Joseph's and
Community Community consolidating

Hospital Foundation entr¡6

Schedule 2

$ tt9,6t7
6'223 - 

-

I 13,394

4,147 37 s

t17,541 375

9l

49

==369

--

snq 

-

(134)

32,682
7,999

20,393
4,359

24,219
6,255
2,68s
8,856

t4,293

121,741

(4200)

2
2

1,860
2,481

_(68)

(4,264) 4207

S

I 4,1 65

I 05.983

120-148

122.250

1,862
,,oy

(68)

(4,334)

(s7)

t4,t94

28

Consolidated
St. Joseph's
Community

HosDital

tt9,617
6.223

I 13,394

L \))

I 17.916

9,225
t4 293

32,773
7,999

20,442
4,359

24,219
6,255
2,685
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Net patient seruice revenue:
Net patient sewice revenue before provision for bad debts

Provision for bad debts

Net patient sewice revenue

Other operatin g revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salari es

Fringe benefits
Supplies
Contact services
Affiliate support
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Other
Corporate allocations

Total expenses

Operating revenue in exæss ofexpenses

Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment income
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on rading securities
Chmge in fair value of intsst rate swaps

Loss on early extinguishment ofdebt
Loss on disposal ofproperty, plmt, and equipment

Revenue and gains in excess ofexpenses md losses

Other chmges in unrestricted net assets:

Trmsfers (to) from afüliates
Chæge in net umealized gains md losses on otber-th¿n-fading securities
Contributions and net assets released from restriction for property, plant, and equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

Umestricted net æsets at beginning ofyear

Unrstricted net assets at end ofyear

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. ANE AFFILIATES

Consolidating Staternent of Operations Infomation

Yea¡ ended June 30, 2014

(In thousands)

Froedtert
He¿lth

(P¿rent Only)

308,092

308,092

Froedtert He¿lth
Hometoìvn
Pharmacy

4,076

Eliminations

consolidating
entries

199

199

Schedule 2

¡nd

$ 4,076

4,076

76,150
l0 1,238

4,662
20,703

6
13,098
5,597

74,174

800

3,142

5l
20

460

*t,tt +n 

-

12,464 (397) 199

54,338
64,378

(s1s)

130,665

460,953

591,618

38,361

s 629,979

(3e7)

(397) lee

818 (480)

421 (281)

199

630 119

130,467

460,953

591,420

38.699

312.367

76,950
r 01,238

7,804
20,'ì03

6
13,149
5,617

74,634

300.1 0 I

t2,266

54,338
64,378

(tr r)

Consolidated
Froedtert

He¿lth
lParent Onlv)

4,076

4,076

308.291
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Schedule 2

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Operations Infomation

Yea¡ ended June 30,2014

(In thousmds)

\{st Bend
Clinic

F&MCIV
Community
Physicians

I 75,338
6,1 38

\69,200

9,291

178491

Progressive
Physician
Network

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entries

Net patient seNice revenue:
Net patient service revenue before provision for bad debts

P¡ovision for bad debts

Net patient sewice revenue

Other operating revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salries
Fringe benefits
Supplies
Contract sewices
Afüliate support
Depreciation md amortization
Interest
Other
Corporate allocations

Total expenses

Operating revenue in excess (deficient) of€xpenses

Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment income
Change in net umealized gains md losses on trading securities
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Loss on early extinguishment ofdebt
Loss on disposal ofproperty, plmt, and equipment

Revenue md gains in excess (deficient) ofexpenses and losses

Other chæges in unrestricted net assets:

Transfers (to) from affiliates
Change in net uruælized gains and losses on other-thm-fading securities
Contributions md net assets released from restriction for property, plmt, and equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other thæ net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundatio¡
other

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

Uuestricted net assets (deficit) at begiming of year

Umestricted net assets (deficit) at end ofyea

s-

it
t2

,6

263

\41,328
27,618
13,959
17,814

(73,482)
4,561

2s,984
20,6r0

178,392

99

8't (294,522)

87 (294,s22)

(t,t47)
(8 l,l 38)

(82)
(3,495)

(r 7,s48)
(191,l r 2)

(294,s22)

(176)

41.eï

6r0

1,922 42,68s (176)

(1,922) 6,834 (3,328) __:_
49,s19 (3,504)

210,316

(205)
2,1s2

(5,253)

680

207,690

1.330.476

l -538-166

I.57 I .406

83,7 4t

(370)

59,469
61,989

(513)

Consolidated
Froedtert

Health- Inc-

1,661,856
71 lSO

1,588,466

6ó.68r

I ,655,t 47

588,077
145,833
3t6,443
I 35,323
84,769
72,894
23,t71

204,896

See accompmying independent auditors' report.
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets Information

Year ended June 30, 201 4

(ln thousands)

Froedtert
Memorial
Lutheran
Hospital

Froedtert Froedtert
Hospital Surgery

Foundation Center

949 351
(870)

109

531

$ 88,677
(44s,402)

(20s)
2,000

532
(53r)

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entries

(174)

(174)

í g?sì

t2.1 03 )

(2,s02)

(2,s02)

(21.7s6)

(24-258\

(366\

(366)

Schedule 3

Unrestricted net assets:

Revenue in excess ofexpenses and losses
Transfers (to) from affiìiates
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-trading securities
Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment
Change ìn accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Unrestricted net assets at end ofyear

Temporarily restricted nel assets:

Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Restricted contributions
Restricted investment income
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets reìeased from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment
Change in beneficial interest in foundations
Other

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Temporariìy restricted net assets at end ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets:

Permanently restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets at end ofyear

Zr
(3s4,929)

983.887

s 628,958

s
2,000

(2,000)
2,s02

2,502

21,756

S 24.258

$

7t9

13.624

14-343

348

3_858

4.206

396
1,622

390
(s16)
(109)

1,783

8.132

9.915

s

366

366

166 

-

366

9.915

366

366

(3s4,036)

999.440

64s.404

396
3,622

390
(sl6)

(2, l 09)

1,783

8,132

Consolidated
Froedtert
Memorial
Lutheran
Hospital

109
t32

(J,l

)

89,803
(446,272)

(20s)
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Unrestricted net assets:

Revenue in excess ofexpenses and losses
Transfers (to) from affiliates
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-trading securities
Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Unrestricted net assets at end ofyear

Temporarily resrricted net assets:

Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Restricted contributions
Restricted investment income
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment
Change in beneficial interest in foundations
Other

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Temporarily restricted net assets at end ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets:

Permanently restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets at end ofyear

FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets Information

Year ended June 30,2014

(In thousands)

Community
Memorial
Hosp¡tâl

$ (e,7se)
(72,747)

(s,78s)

(38)

(88,329)

184.547

$ 96.218

1,275

1.713

Community
Memorial

Foundation

525
(45)

l5

t2

4.82s

5-332

26
449
22

(s1)
(1s)

1.275

1.713

Community
Outpatient

Health
Seruices

38

Eliminations
and

consolidating
entries

(525)

l8

(507)

(4.825i

(5.332)

(438)

fl.275)
t1-713)

Schedule 3

39507

$

223

262

43s 

-or, 

(438)

7
43S

$

$

$

1.7t3

t84.770

(88,290)

9ó,480

7

26
449
22

(51 )
(l 5)

438

1.275

Consolidated
Community
Memorial
Hospital

l5
(5,785)

('t)

(9.721)
(1) 19)\
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consotidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets Information

Year ended June 30,2014

(In thousands)

St. Joseph's
Community

Hosnital

(4,264)
25,357

(123)

20,970

64,0ó8

85.038

St. Joseph's
Community
Foundation

4,207

28

123

(6,805)

41.915

35.1 10

Elim¡nat¡ons
and

consol¡dating
entries

Schedule 3

Unrestricted net assets:

Revenue in excess ofexpenses and losses

Transfers (to) from affiliates
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-trading securities

Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other tban net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Unrestricted nel assets at end ofyear

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Restricted contributions
Restricted investment income
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment
Change in beneficial interest in foundations
Other

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

Temporariìy restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Temporarily restricted net assets at end ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets:

Permanently restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets at end ofyear

s
(r 1,163)

s

$
4 ;

(14)
(28)

$

$

S 2

5t5

2

2

1 20.1 48

t*l
(28)

15

500

28

(57)
14,194

1 4,1 65

1 0s,983

Consolidated
St. Joseph's
Community

Hosnital
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FROEDTERT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement ofChanges in Net Assets Information

Year ended Ju¡e 30,2014

(In thousands)

Froedtert
Health

lParent Onlvì

130,665
460,9s3

Froedtert Health
Hometown
Pharmacv

(3e7)

(3e7)

818

421

Eliminât¡ons

consolidating
entries

199

(480)

(281)

Schedule 3

and

Unrestricted net assets:

Revenue in excess ofexpenses and losses

ns and losses on other-than-trading securities
rictions for property, plant, and equipment

Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs

Forgiveness of receivable from Foundation
Other

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Unrestricted net assets at end ofyear

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Restricted contributi ons
Restricted investment income
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for property, planl, and equipment

Change in beneficial interest in foundations
Other

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Temporarily restricted net assets at end ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets:

Permanently restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets at end ofyear

$ 199

591,618

38 361

s 629,979

s

$

$

$

591,420

38.699

630.1 19

t30,467
460,9s3

Consolidated
Froedtert

Heâlth
lParent Onlv)

56 (Continued)



Schedule 3

FROEDTI,RT HEALTH, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement ofChanges in Net Assets Information

Yea¡ ended June 30,2014

(In thousands)

West Bend
Clinic

and

Unrestricted net assets:

Revenue in excess (deficient) ofexpenses and losses

securities
ipment
fit costs

Other

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets (deficit) at beginning ofyear

Unrestricted net assets (deficit) at end ofyear

Temoorarilv restricted net assets:

Cirange in net unrealized gains on investments

Restricted contributions
Restricted inveslment income
Net assets reìeased from restrictions for operations

Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, ard equipment

Change in beneficial interest in foundations
Other

Increase (decrease) in temporarily resÍicted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at beginning ofyear

Temporarily restricted net assets at end ofyear

Permanently restricted net assets:

Permanently rest¡icted net assets at beginning ofyear

Permanentìy restricted net assets at end ofyear

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

$

F&MCW
Community
Phvsicians

41,99s

42,68s

6 Ri4

49.519

Progressive
Physician
Network

(176)

(176)

(3.328)

t3 s04l

Eliminations

consolidating
entries

1,922

1,922

(r.922)

690

$

$-

$

$

s

2,236

9.907

1 2.1 43

368

368

7

422
4,128

412
(s8r)

(2,1s2)

207,690

r.330.476

1,538,1 66

2r0,3l6

(20s)
) 1<)

(5,2s3)

680

Consolidated
Froedtert

Health. Inc.
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ATTACHMENT 5(c)

RESPONSE TO QUESTION 5(c)

HART.SCOTT.RODINO DETERMINATION LETTER

See Attached.
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UNITED STATES OF AMER]CA

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washlngton, D.C.20580

Bureau of ComPet¡t¡on
Premerger Notificalion Off¡ce

September 16,2O14

Carla Hine, Esq.
McDermott Will & Emery, LLP
500 North CapitolStreet, NW
Washington, DC 20001 USA

Re: EARLY TERMINATION GRANTED
Transaction f dentification Number 2O'l 41 501

Froedtert Health, lnc. / Ascension Health Alliance

Dear Mr. Hine,:

The request for early termination of the waiting period is granled effective September 16,2014 03:17

PM with respect to the proposed acquisition by Froedtert Health, lnc. of certain assets of Ministry

Holdings, lnc. from Ascension Health Alliance. Early termination of the waiting period is provided by

Sectioñ 7A(bX2) of the Clayton Act and Sections 803,10(b) and 803.1 1(c) of the Premerger
Notification Rules.

Notice of this termination will be published in the Federal Register in accordance with Section

7a(b)(2) óf the Clayton Act and Section 803.11(c) of the Premerger Notification Rule_s and on the

Federai Trade Commission's internet site [http://rirnnnv,ftc.gov/bc/earlyterm/index.html].

lf you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact me a1.202-326'3589,

nlact Representative
Premerger Notification Office
Bureau of Competition


